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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 
 
This report contains certain "forward-looking statements," within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Reform Act of 1995, and are including this statement for purposes of these safe harbor provisions. "Forward-looking statements,"
which are based on certain assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies and expectations, may be identified by the use of such words as "believe," "expect,"
"anticipate," "should," "planned," "estimated" and "potential." Examples of forward-looking statements, include, but are not limited to, estimates with respect to our
financial condition, results of operations and business that are subject to various factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from these estimates and most
other statements that are not historical in nature. These factors include, but are not limited to, general and local economic conditions, changes in interest rates, deposit
flows, demand for commercial, mortgage, consumer and other loans, real estate values, competition, changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines, changes in
legislation or regulation, and other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory and technological factors affecting our operations, pricing, products and services.
These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. Further
information concerning the Company and its business, including additional factors that could materially affect our financial results, is included in our other filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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 PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
Item 1. Financial Statements
  
 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS       
        
 ASSETS       
        
   (Unaudited)     
   September 30,   December 31,  
   2011   2010  
CURRENT ASSETS:        
  Cash   $ 83,541  $ 163,320 
  Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable, net    5,967,046   7,641,953 
  Earned but uncollected fee income    125,192   203,068 
  Prepaid expenses and other    98,813   100,630 
    Total current assets    6,274,592   8,108,971 
          
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net    21,507   18,998 
          
SECURITY DEPOSITS    5,486   5,486 
          
   $ 6,301,585  $ 8,133,455 
          
 LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY         
          
CURRENT LIABILITIES:          
  Due to financial institution   $ 3,845,904  $ 5,607,572 
  Accounts payable    56,673   58,386 
  Due to Lender    -   290,000 
  Accrued payroll and related taxes    53,170   55,555 
  Accrued expenses    39,734   73,102 
  Collected but unearned fee income    42,471   39,620 
    Total current liabilities    4,037,952   6,124,235 
          
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES          
          
PREFERRED STOCK, net of issuance costs of          
      $1,209,383    671,409   671,409 
COMMON STOCK    1,863   1,863 
ADDITIONAL PAID IN CAPITAL    7,464,211   7,461,779 
ACCUMULATED DEFICIT    (5,873,850)   (6,125,831)
    2,263,633   2,009,220 
          
   $ 6,301,585  $ 8,133,455 

 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

             

 

 

(Unaudited)
For the three months ending

September 30,   

(Unaudited)
For the nine months ending

September 30,   
   2011   2010   2011   2010 
FINANCE REVENUES  $ 561,014  $ 672,184  $ 1,880,154  $ 1,773,736 
INTEREST EXPENSE - financial institution   (107,595)   (186,395)   (394,881)   (484,328)
INTEREST EXPENSE - related party   -   (67,971)   (16,669)   (120,192)
                 
 
NET FINANCE REVENUES   453,419   417,818   1,468,604   1,169,216 
(PROVISION) BENEFIT FOR CREDIT LOSSES   1,646   (317)   1,472   597 
 
FINANCE REVENUES, NET OF INTEREST EXPENSE                 
 AND CREDIT LOSSES   455,065   417,501   1,470,076   1,169,813 
                 
 
OPERATING EXPENSES   393,617   365,929   1,214,095   1,236,900 
                 
 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES   61,448   51,572   255,981   (67,087)
                 
 
INCOME TAXES   -   -   -   - 
 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS   61,448   51,572   255,981   (67,087)
 
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS   -   128,291   (4,000)   (527,558)
 
NET INCOME (LOSS)   61,448   179,863   251,981   (594,645)
 
LESS: NONCONTROLLING INTEREST SHARE   -   27,717   -   (91,931)
 
CONTROLLING INTEREST SHARE   61,448   152,146   251,981   (502,714)
 
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDER  $ 61,448  $ 152,146  $ 251,981  $ (502,714)
                 
 
 
BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:                 
   INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 0.01  $ 0.00 
   INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS   0.00   0.01   0.00   (0.03)
   NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDER  $ 0.00  $ 0.01  $ 0.01  $ (0.03)
                 
                 
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:                 
   INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  $ 0.00  $ 0.00  $ 0.01  $ 0.00 
   INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS   0.00   0.01   0.00   (0.03)
   NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDER  $ 0.00  $ 0.01  $ 0.01  $ (0.03)
                 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING                 
  Basic   17,763,618   18,616,199   17,763,618   17,470,210 
  Dilutive   20,572,341   20,516,132   20,572,341   17,470,210 

 
The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011  

                
  Preferred   Common   Additional   Accumulated     
  Stock   Stock   Paid in Capital   Deficit   Total  
Balance, December 31, 2010 (audited)  $ 671,409  $ 1,863  $ 7,461,779  $ (6,125,831)  $ 2,009,220 
                     
Provision for compensation expense related to issued stock options   -   -   3,563   -   3,563 
                     
Benefit for compensation expense related to expired stock options   -   -   (1,131)   -   (1,131)
                     
Net income   -   -   -   251,981   251,981 
                     
Balance, September 30, 2011 (unaudited)  $ 671,409  $ 1,863  $ 7,464,211  $ (5,873,850)  $ 2,263,633 

 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.       
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS       

For the nine months ended September 30,       
       
  (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  2011   2010  
  Net income (loss)  $ 251,981  $ (502,714)
  Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash         
    used in operating activities:         

Noncontrolling interest share       (91,931)
    Depreciation and amortization   15,259   25,145 
    Net compensation expense related to issuance of stock options   2,432   6,720 
    (Increase) decrease in retained interest in purchased         
       accounts receivable   1,674,907   (3,447,680)
    Decrease (increase) in earned but uncollected   77,876   (57,072)
    Decrease  in prepaid expenses and other   1,817   33,428 
    (Decrease) increase in accounts payable   (1,713)   72,418 
    (Decrease) increase  in accrued payroll and related taxes   (2,385)   29,891 
    Increase (decrease) in collected but not earned   2,851   (14,094)
    Decrease in accrued expenses   (33,368)   (94,665)
      Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities - continuing operations   1,989,657   (4,040,554)
      Net cash provided by operating activities - discontinued operations   -   527,329 
      Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   1,989,657   (3,513,225)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         
  Purchases of property and equipment   (17,768)   (17,663)
      Net cash used in investing activities - continuing operations   (17,768)   (17,663)
         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         
 (Payments to) proceeds from financial institution, net   (1,761,668)   1,802,322 
  (Payments to) proceeds from lender   (290,000)   1,448,986 
     Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities - continuing operations   (2,051,668)   3,251,308 
     Net cash used in financing activities - discontinued operations   -   (10,000)
     Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (2,051,668)   3,241,308 
         
DECREASE IN CASH   (79,779)   (289,580)
         
CASH, beginning of period   163,320   453,880 
         
CASH, end of period  $ 83,541  $ 164,300 

 
The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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    ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Three Months and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

(Unaudited)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2011, the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 and the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 have been prepared by us
without audit.  In the opinion of Management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to present fairly in all material respects our financial position as of September 30, 2011, results of operations for the three months and nine
months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 and are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full year.

This report should be read in conjunction with our Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

1.  BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (the “Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Anchor Funding
Services, LLC (“Anchor”).  On October 6, 2010, we completed the rescission of our acquisition of certain assets of Brookridge Funding, LLC that occurred on December
7, 2009. On October 6, 2010, the Minority members of our 80% owned subsidiary Brookridge Funding Services, LLC (“Brookridge”) purchased Anchor’s interest in
Brookridge at book value of approximately $783,000. The consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010 and the
consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 reflect the historical operations of Brookridge as discontinued operations.
Accordingly, we have generally presented the notes to our consolidated financial statements on the basis of continuing operations which has caused certain
reclassifications within the financial statements and related footnotes. In addition, unless stated otherwise, any reference to income statement items in these financial
statements refers to results from continuing operations.

Anchor Funding Services, Inc. is a Delaware corporation.  Anchor Funding Services, Inc. has no operations; substantially all operations of the Company are the
responsibility of Anchor Funding Services, LLC.

Anchor Funding Services, LLC is a North Carolina limited liability company. Anchor Funding Services, LLC was formed for the purpose of providing factoring and
back office services to businesses located throughout the United States of America.
 
2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
 
Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and, its wholly owned
subsidiary, Anchor Funding Services, LLC (continuing operations). Anchor’s former 80% interest in Brookridge Funding Services, LLC is reflected in the consolidated
statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010 and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30,
2010 as discontinued operations.
 
Estimates – The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition – The Company charges fees to its customers in one of two ways as follows:

1)           Fixed Transaction Fee. Fixed transaction fees are a fixed percentage of the purchased invoice and purchase order advance.  This percentage does
not change from the date the purchased invoice is funded until the date the purchased invoice is collected.
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2)           Variable Transaction Fee.  Variable transaction fees are variable based on the length of time the purchased invoice and purchase order advance is
outstanding.   As specified in its contract with the client, the Company charges variable increasing percentages of the purchased invoice or purchase order
advance as time elapses from the purchase date to the collection date.

For both fixed and variable transaction fees, the Company recognizes revenue by using one of two methods depending on the type of
customer.  For new customers the Company recognizes revenue using the cost recovery method.  For established customers the Company
recognizes revenue using the accrual method.
 
Under the cost recovery method, all revenue is recognized upon collection of the entire amount of purchased accounts receivable.
 
The Company considers new customers to be accounts whose initial funding has been within the last three months or less.  Management believes it needs three months of
history to reasonably estimate a customer’s collection period and accrued revenues.  If three months of history has a limited number of transactions, the cost recovery
method will continue to be used until a reasonable revenue estimate can be made based on additional history.  Once the Company obtains sufficient historical experience,
it will begin using the accrual method to recognize revenue.

For established customers the Company uses the accrual method of accounting.  The Company applies this method by multiplying the historical yield, for each customer,
times the amount advanced on each purchased invoice outstanding for that customer, times the portion of a year that the advance is outstanding.  The customers’
historical yield is based on the Company’s last six months of experience with the customer along with the Company’s experience in the customer’s industry, if applicable.

The amounts recorded as revenue under the accrual method described above are estimates.  As purchased invoices and purchase order advances are collected, the
Company records the appropriate adjustments to record the actual revenue earned on each purchased invoice and purchase order advance. Adjustments from the
estimated revenue to the actual revenue have not been material.
 
Retained Interest in Purchased Accounts Receivable – Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable represents the gross amount of invoices purchased and
advances on purchase orders from clients less amounts maintained in a reserve account.  For factoring transactions, the Company purchases a customer’s accounts
receivable and advances them a percentage of the invoice total.  The difference between the purchase price and amount advanced is maintained in a reserve account.  The
reserve account is used to offset any potential losses the Company may have related to the purchased accounts receivable.  For purchase order transactions, the company
advances and pays for up to 100% of the product’s cost.
 
The Company’s factoring and security agreements with their customers include various recourse provisions requiring the customers to repurchase accounts receivable if
certain conditions, as defined in the factoring and security agreement, are met.
 
Senior management reviews the status of uncollected purchased accounts receivable and purchase order advances monthly to determine if any are uncollectible.  The
Company has a security interest in the accounts receivable and inventory purchased and, on a case-by-case basis, may have additional collateral.  The Company files
security interests in the property securing their advances.  Access to this collateral is dependent upon the laws and regulations in each state where the security interest is
filed.  Additionally, the Company has various types of personal guarantees from their customers relating to the purchased accounts receivable and purchase order
advances.

Management considered approximately $76,200 of their September 30, 2011 and $80,500 of their December 31, 2010 retained interest in purchased accounts receivable
to be uncollectible.

Management believes the fair value of the retained interest in purchased accounts receivable approximates its recorded value because of the relatively short term nature
of the purchased receivable and the fact that the majority of these invoices have been subsequently collected. As of September 30, 2011, accounts receivable purchased
over 90 days old and still accruing fees totaled approximately $211,800.
 
Property and Equipment – Property and equipment, consisting of furniture and fixtures and computers and software, are stated at cost.  Depreciation is provided over
the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets using the straight-line method.  Estimated useful lives range from 2 to 7 years.

Advertising Costs – The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred.  Total advertising costs were approximately $65,000 and $52,000 for the quarters
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $179,200 and $194,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010, respectively.
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Earnings per Share – Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period.  Dilutive earnings per share include the potential impact of dilutive securities, such as convertible preferred stock, stock options and stock
warrants.  The dilutive effect of stock options and warrants is computed using the treasury stock method, which assumes the repurchase of common shares at the average
market price.

Under the treasury stock method, options and warrants will have a dilutive effect when the average price of common stock during the period exceeds the exercise price of
options or warrants.  
 
When there is a year-to-date loss from continuing operations, potential common shares should not be included in the computation of diluted earnings per share, since they
would have an anti-dilutive effect.  
 
Stock Based Compensation - The fair value of transactions in which the Company exchanges its equity instruments for employee services (share-based payment
transactions) must be recognized as an expense in the financial statements as services are performed.

Compensation expense is determined by reference to the fair value of an award on the date of grant and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. We
have elected to use the Black-Scholes-Merton (BSM) pricing model to determine the fair value of all stock option awards.
 
See Note 8 for the impact on operating results for the three month and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – The carrying value of cash equivalents, retained interest in purchased accounts receivable, due to financial institution, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximates their fair value.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid cash investment funds with original maturities of three months or less when
acquired.

Income Taxes – The Company is a “C” corporation for income tax purposes.  In a “C” corporation income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported
in the financial statements plus deferred income taxes related to the differences between financial statement and taxable income.
 
The primary differences between financial statement and taxable income for the Company are as follows:

●Compensation costs related to the issuance of stock options
●Use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debts

●Differences in basis of property and equipment between financial and income tax reporting
●Net operating loss carryforwards.

The deferred tax asset represents the future tax return consequences of utilizing these items.   Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation reserve, when management is
uncertain if the net deferred tax assets will ever be realized.

 
In July 2006, FASB issued guidance which clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions.  This guidance requires that the Company recognize in its consolidated
financial statements, the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position.
 
The Company applied this guidance to all its tax positions, including tax positions taken and those expected to be taken, under the transition provision of the
interpretation.
 
For the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized no liability for uncertain tax positions.
 
The Company classifies interest accrued on unrecognized tax benefits with interest expense.  Penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits are classified with operating
expenses.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements –

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, “Disclosure about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses” which was
effective upon issuance. ASU 2010-20 amends Topic 310 to improve the disclosures that an entity provides about the credit quality of its financing receivables and the
related allowance for credit losses. As a result of these amendments, an entity is required to disaggregate by portfolio segment or class certain existing disclosures and
provide new disclosures about its financing receivables and related allowance for credit losses. These provisions are effective for interim and annual reporting periods
ending on or after December 15, 2010. In January 2011, ASU 2011-06, “Receivables (Topic 310): Deferral of the Effective Date of Disclosures about Troubled Debt
Restructurings in Update No. 2010-20” is issued to temporarily delay the effective date of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings for public entities. The delay
is intended to allow the FASB time to complete its deliberations on what constitutes a troubled debt restructuring. Accordingly, ASU 2010-20 is changed to be effective
for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2011. We assessed that ASU 2010-20 concerns disclosures only and will not have a material impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-22, “Accounting for Various Topics—Technical Corrections to SEC Paragraphs”. ASU 2010-22 amends various SEC
paragraphs based on external comments received and the issuance of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 112, which amends or rescinds portions of certain SAB
topics. The topics affected include reporting of inventories in financial statements for Form 10-Q, debt issue costs in conjunction with a business combination, sales of
stock by subsidiary, gain recognition on sales of business, business combinations prior to an initial public offering, loss contingent and liability assumed in business
combination, divestitures, and oil and gas exchange offers. We are currently evaluating the effect of ASU 2010-22 on our financial statements and believe it would not
have a material impact on our results of operations.

In September 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses, to enhance
the disclosures required for financing receivables (for example, loans, trade accounts receivable, notes receivable, and receivables relating to a lessor’s leveraged, direct
financing, and sales-type leases) and allowances for credit losses. The amended disclosures are designed to provide more information to financial statement users
regarding the credit quality of a creditor’s financing receivables and the adequacy of its allowance for credit losses. We adopted all of the requirements of the amended
guidance on December 31, 2010, its effective date, except for the disclosures regarding the activity during a reporting period which became effective January 1, 2011.
Adoption of the pronouncement has not had, and is not expected to have, a significant effect on our consolidated financial statement disclosures.

In April 2011, Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update 2011-02 – A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a Restructuring
is a Troubled Debt Restructuring, or ASU 2011-02. This standard amends previous guidance provided in Accounting Standards Codification 310-40-Receivables-
Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors. ASU 2011-02 provides additional guidance and criteria on how companies should determine whether a restructuring or
refinancing of an existing  financial receivable represents a troubled debt restructuring. Companies must assess whether the restructuring or refinancing of an existing
financial receivable is a troubled debt restructuring  in order to determine how to account for the remaining unamortized portion of certain fees, such as origination fees,
associated with the original debt investment. ASU-2011-02 is effective for the first interim period beginning on or after June 15, 2011. We adopted this standard
beginning with the quarter ended September 30, 2011. Our adoption of this update did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.
 
3.  RETAINED INTEREST IN PURCHASED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable consists of the following:

  
September 30,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Purchased accounts receivable outstanding  $ 7,201,323  $ 9,447,586 
Purchase order advances   188,373   29,883 
Reserve account   (1,346,517)   (1,755,016)
Allowance for uncollectible invoices   (76,133)   (80,500)
  $ 5,967,046  $ 7,641,953 
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Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable consists, excluding the allowance for uncollectible invoices, of United States companies in the following industries:

  
September 30,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Staffing  $ 704,766  $ 471,612 
Transportation   1,673,342   1,632,265 
Publishing   -   1,463,411 
Construction   5,218   5,218 
Service   3,659,853   3,651,815 
Other   -   498,132 

  $ 6,043,179  $ 7,722,453 
 
Total purchased invoices were as follows: 
 

  
For the quarters ended

September 30,   
For the nine months ended

September 30,  
  2011   2010   2011   2010  
Purchased invoices  $ 17,744,294  $ 25,698,384  $ 58,853,420  $ 81,847,501 
Purchase order advances   538,264   -   2,526,054   - 
  $ 18,282,558   25,698,384  $ 61,379,474  $ 81,847,501 
 
4.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consist of the following:  

 Estimated Useful Lives  
September 30,

2011   
December 31,

 2010  
Furniture and fixtures 2-5 years  $ 44,731  $ 44,731 
Computers and software 3-7 years   171,734   153,966 
    216,465   198,697 
Less: accumulated depreciation    (194,958)   (179,699)
          
   $ 21,507  $ 18,998 

 
 Depreciation expense was $5,078 and $4,724 for the quarters ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively and $15,259 and $25,145 for the nine months ended

September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

5.  DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTION:

On, November 30, 2009, Anchor entered into a $7 million senior Accounts Receivable (A/R) Credit Facility with a maximum amount of up to $9 million with lender
approval.  This funding facility is based upon Anchor's submission and approval of eligible accounts receivable. This facility replaced Anchor’s revolving credit facility
from another financial institution.  Anchor pays .5% for the first 30 days of the face value for each invoice funded and .016% for each day thereafter until collected. In
addition, interest on advances is paid monthly at the Prime Rate plus 2.0%.  Anchor pays the financial institution various other monthly fees as defined in the agreement.
The agreement requires that Anchor use $1,000,000 of its own funds first to finance its clients.  The agreement contains customary representations and warranties, events
of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien on all Anchors’ assets.  Borrowings on this agreement are partially
guaranteed by the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer.  The partial guarantee is $250,000 each.  On February 10, 2011, Anchor’s agreement with this
financial institution was amended such that beginning February 10, 2011 Anchor would no longer pay discount fees and Anchor would pay interest on advances at the
Prime Rate plus 8.0%  through November 30, 2011 and at the Prime Rate plus 9.0% thereafter. Anchor owed this financial institution $3,845,904 as of September 30,
2011 and $5,607,572 as of December 31, 2010.
 
The agreement automatically renews each year provided that the Company has not provided 60 days notice to the financial institution in advance of the anniversary date.
 
On September 22, 2011, Anchor gave notice to the financial institution that it was electing not to renew the facility when it expires at the end of its current term on
November 30, 2011. On November 8, 2011, Anchor entered into a Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank that is effective November 30, 2011 and replaces
its existing credit facility. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the Bank will advance up to 80% of up to 90% of Anchor’s
advances to its clients. Anchor will pay interest on advances monthly at the 90 Day Libor Rate plus 6.25%.  Anchor will pay the Bank various other monthly fees as
defined in the agreement. The agreement requires that Anchor maintain at all times a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of four to one (4:1).  The agreement contains
customary representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien on all Anchors’ assets.
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6.  CAPITAL STRUCTURE:
 
The Company’s capital structure consists of preferred and common stock as described below:

  

  
Preferred Stock – The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of $.001 par value preferred stock.  The Company’s Board of Directors determines the rights
and preferences of its preferred stock.

 

  
On January 31, 2007, the Company filed a Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of Delaware.  Effective with this filing, 2,000,000 preferred shares
became Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock.  Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock will rank senior to Common Stock.

  
Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible into five shares of the Company’s Common Stock.  The holder of the Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock has the
option to convert the shares to Common Stock at any time.  Upon conversion all accumulated and unpaid dividends will be paid as additional shares of Common Stock.

The dividend rate on Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock is 8%.  Dividends are paid annually on December 31st in the form of additional Series 1 Convertible Preferred
Stock unless the Board of Directors approves a cash dividend.  Dividends on Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock ceased to accrue on the earlier of December 31, 2009,
or on the date they are converted to Common Shares.  Thereafter, the holders of Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock have the same dividend rights as holders of
Common Stock, as if the Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock had been converted to Common Stock.
 
Common Stock – The Company is authorized to issue 65,000,000 shares of $.0001 par value Common Stock.  Each share of Common Stock entitles the holder to one
vote at all stockholder meetings.  Dividends on Common Stock will be determined annually by the Company’s Board of Directors.

The shares issued for Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock and Common Stock as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is summarized as follows:

  Series 1 Convertible   Common  
  Preferred Stock   Stock  

Balance, December 31, 2010   376,387   18,634,369 
Preferred Stock Conversions   -   - 
Common Stock Issuances   -   - 
 Balance September 30, 2011   376,387   18,634,369 
 
7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION:

On December 7, 2009, Brookridge Funding Services, LLC, the Company’s 80% owned subsidiary, acquired certain assets and accounts of Brookridge Funding, LLC. In
connection with the closing, Brookridge entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with MGM Funding, LLC (“MGM”), a limited liability company
owned and controlled by the Company’s Co-Chairmen, Morry F. Rubin and George Rubin, and an investor (“Lender”), pursuant to which Lender  provided a $3.7 million
senior credit facility to Brookridge.  Morry F. Rubin is the managing member of MGM. Loans under the Credit Agreement were secured by all of Brookridge’s assets and
were charged interest at a 20% annual rate. The Credit Agreement contained standard representations, covenants and events of default for facilities of this
type.  Occurrence of an event of default allowed the Lender to accelerate the payment of the loans and/or terminate the commitments to lend, in addition to other legal
remedies, including foreclosing on collateral. On October 6, 2010, in connection with Anchor’s rescission of its purchase of certain assets of Brookridge Funding, MGM
terminated the Credit Agreement. See Note 14 “Acquisition and Discontinued Operations.”
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Also in connection with closing, the company received gross proceeds of $500,002 from the sale of 500,002 shares of common stock and ten year warrants to purchase
2,000,004 shares of common stock exercisable at $1.00 per share (the "Equity Investment").  The Equity Investment was purchased one-third by Morry F. Rubin, one-
third by George Rubin and one-third by a principal stockholder, each of whom are owners of the Lender.
 
Michael P. Hilton and John A. McNiff III, co-presidents of Brookridge, each purchased a ten percent interest in Brookridge at a cost of $150,000 and each agreed to
guarantee repayment of the Lender's Credit Facility up to an amount equal to $300,000.  At Closing, the company entered into employment agreements with Hilton and
McNiff and granted each ten year options to purchase 112,500 shares of our common stock at an exercisable price of $1.00 per share. On October 6, 2010, in connection
with Anchor’s rescission of its purchase of certain assets of Brookridge Funding, the employment agreements with Hilton and McNiff and their options were terminated.
See Note 14 “Acquisition and Discontinued Operations.”

On March 23, 2010, upon approval of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) Anchor entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM Funding, LLC.
Morry F. Rubin is the managing member of MGM. The money to be borrowed under the note was subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility. The
Promissory Note was to assist Anchor in funding up to 50% of the funds employed for a specific client that Anchor’s senior lender will only fund up to 50% of the funds
employed. The senior lender’s limitation is based on the size of the client’s credit facility. The MGM Promissory Note is a demand note.  In addition, when Anchor
typically has significant invoice purchase requests from clients, MGM periodically makes short-term loans to Anchor Funding Services, Inc. which then advances the
funds to Anchor Funding Services, LLC.  Anchor does not receive same day availability of funds from its senior lender for its daily client invoice purchases requiring it
to use its own capital and MGM to meet client demand. These loans were payable on demand and accrued interest at 20% per annum. This note was subsequently
replaced by the Promissory Note described below.

On April 26, 2011, upon approval of the Board, Anchor entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM. The money to be borrowed under the note is
subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility with a senior lender, which requires funds employed to be no less than $5,000,000 before Anchor may borrow
funds from MGM. The Promissory Note is to assist Anchor in providing factoring and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients and it replaces an earlier
agreement between the parties, described above. This facility will supplement Anchor's $7 Million (which is expandable to $9 Million) credit line with a senior lender.
The MGM Promissory Note is a demand note payable together with interest at the rate of 11% per annum.  If mutually agreed upon in writing by Anchor and MGM, and
Anchor's purchase order fundings exceed $1 Million, then interest may accrue on the portion of the unpaid balance of this Note that is funding purchase order advances
that are in excess of $1 Million at a rate equal to twenty percent (20.0%) per annum. Anchor owed $0 and $290,000 to MGM as of September 30, 2011 and December
31, 2010, respectively. Anchor paid $0 and $67,971 of interest to MGM for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $16,669 and
$120,192 of interest for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
 
8. EMPLOYMENT AND STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTS:

On January 31, 2007, the Board adopted our 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), with 2,100,000 common shares authorized for issuance under the
Plan.  In October 2009 the Company's stockholders approved an increase in the number of shares covered by the Plan to 4,200,000 shares.

At closing of the exchange transaction described above, M. Rubin and Brad Bernstein (“B. Bernstein”), the President of the Company, entered into employment contracts
and stock option agreements.  Additionally, at closing two non-employee directors entered into stock option agreements.
  
 The following summarizes M. Rubin’s employment agreement and stock options:
 
 The employment agreement with M. Rubin currently retains his services as Co-chairman and Chief Executive Officer through January 31, 2012.

 An annual salary of $1 until, the first day of the first month following such time as the Company, shall have, within any period beginning on
January 1 and ending not more than 12 months thereafter, earned pre-tax net income exceeding $1,000,000, M. Rubin’s base salary shall be
adjusted to an amount, to be mutually agreed upon between M. Rubin and the Company, reflecting the fair value of the services provided, and to be
provided, by M. Rubin taking into account (i) his position, responsibilities and performance, (ii) the Company’s  industry, size and performance,
and (iii) other relevant factors. M. Rubin is eligible to receive annual bonuses as determined by the Company’s compensation committee.  M.
Rubin shall be entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of $1,500.

 10-year options to purchase 650,000 shares exercisable at $1.25 per share, pursuant to the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan.
Vesting of the fair value of the options was one-third immediately, one-third on February 29, 2008 and one-third on February 28, 2009.
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 The following summarizes B. Bernstein’s employment agreement and stock options:
 
 The employment agreement with B. Bernstein currently retains his services as President for a three-year period through January 31, 2012.

 An annual salary of $205,000 during the first year, $220,000 during the second year and $240,000 during the third year and any additional year of
employment.  The Board may periodically review B. Bernstein’s base salary and may determine to increase (but not decrease) the base salary in
accordance with such policies as the Company may hereafter adopt from time to time.  B. Bernstein is eligible to receive annual bonuses as
determined by the Company’s compensation committee.  B. Bernstein shall be entitled to a monthly automobile allowance of $1,000.

  
 
On December 4, 2009, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Brookridge providing for the acquisition of certain assets and accounts of Seller’s
purchase order finance business.  The closing of the acquisition took place on December 7, 2009.  In connection with the transaction, Brookridge entered into five year
employment contracts and ten year stock option agreements with Michael Hilton and John McNiff, each in the amount of 112,500 shares, each as Co-President of
Brookridge. On October 6, 2010, in connection with Anchor’s rescission of its purchase of certain assets of Brookridge Funding, the employment agreements with Hilton
and McNiff and their options were terminated. See Note 14 “Acquisition and Discontinued Operations.”
 
 The following summarizes the stock option agreements entered into with three directors:
 

●10-year options to purchase 280,000 shares exercisable at $1.25 per share, pursuant to the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan.
Vesting of the fair value of the options is one-third immediately, one-third one year from the grant date and the remainder 2 years from grant
date.  If any director ceases serving the Company for any reason, all unvested options shall terminate immediately and all vested options must be
exercised within 90 days after the director ceases serving as a director.

 
 The following summarizes employee stock option agreements entered into with five employees:
 

●10-year options to purchase 86,500 shares exercisable at prices of $1.00 and $1.25 per share, pursuant to the Company’s 2007 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan. The grant dates range from September 28, 2007 to November 30, 2009.  Vesting periods range from one to four years. If any
employee ceases being employed by the Company for any reason, all vested and unvested options shall terminate immediately.
 

The following table summarizes information about stock options as of September 30, 2011:
         

Exercise   Number  Remaining  Number  
Price   Outstanding  Contractual Life  Exercisable  

         
$ 1.25   1,885,000 6 years   1,883,750 
$ 1.00   45,000 8 years   17,500 
$ 0.62   500,000 8 years       500,000 

     2,430,000    2,401,250 
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The Company recorded the issuance of these options in accordance with ASC 718.  The following information was input into a BSM.
     
Exercise price  $ 0.62 to $1.25 
Term  10 years 
Volatility  .85 to 2.50 
Dividends   0% 
Discount rate  2.82% to 4.75% 
 
The pre-tax fair value effect recorded for these options in the statement of operations for the quarters ending September 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:
   2011   2010  
       
Fully vested stock options  $ -  $ - 
Unvested portion of stock options   1,185   6,810 
   1,185   6,810 
Benefit for expired stock options   -   - 
(Benefit) provision, net  $ 1,185  $ 6,810 

9. WARRANTS
 
In March, 2007, the placement agent was issued warrants to purchase 1,342,500 shares of the Company’s common stock.  The following information was input into BSM
to compute a per warrant price of $.0462:
 
Exercise price  $ 1.10 
Term  5 years 
Volatility   2.5 
Dividends   0%
Discount rate   4.70%

On December 7, 2009, the Company received gross proceeds of $500,002 from the sale of 500,002 shares of common stock and ten year warrants to purchase 2,000,004
shares of common stock exercisable at $1.00 per share. The Black Scholes option pricing model was used to compute the fair value of the warrants.

The following table summarizes information about stock warrants as of September 30, 2011:
 
     Weighted Average    

Exercise   Number  Remaining  Number  
Price   Outstanding  Contractual Life  Exercisable  

         
$ 1.10   1,342,500 1 year    1,342,500 
$ 1.00   2,000,004   9 years   2,000,004 

     3,342,504    3,342,504 
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10.  CONCENTRATIONS:
 
Revenues – The Company recorded revenues from United States companies in the following industries as follows:
 
 

  
For the quarters ended

September 30,   
For the nine months ended

September 30,  
   2011   2010   2011   2010 
Transportation  $ 177,841  $ 182,196  $ 503,881  $ 506,435 
Staffing   33,680   40,442   103,408   142,133 
Service   349,493   231,781   1,043,485   781,784 
Other   -   34,101   135,371   64,099 
Publishing   -   183,664   94,009   279,285 
  $ 561,014  $ 672,184  $ 1,880,154  $ 1,773,736 

 
 
Major Customers – For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company’s largest customer by revenues was an importer of auto parts which
accounted for approximately 10% and 8.6% of its revenues, respectively.
 
The Company had no customers for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 which represented 10% or more of its revenues.
 
Cash – The Company places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions in the United States. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
provides coverage up to $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts and provides unlimited coverage for certain qualifying and participating non-interest bearing
transaction accounts.   During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, the Company from time to time may have had amounts on deposit in excess of the insured limits.
As of September 30, 2011, the Company did not have amounts on deposit which exceeded these insured amounts.
 
11.  SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW:
 
Cash paid for interest was as follows:

  
For the nine months ending
September 30,  

  2011   2010  
To a financial institution  $ 404,354  $ 510,669 
To a related party   16,669   120,192 
Total  $ 421,023  $ 630,861 
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12.  INCOME TAXES:

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had approximately $4.4 million of net operating loss carryforwards (“NOL”) for income tax purposes.   The NOL’s expire in
various years from 2021 through 2025.  The Company’s use of operating loss carryforwards is subject to limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue
Code.  Management believes that the deferred tax assets as of September 30, 2011 do not satisfy the realization criteria and has recorded a valuation allowance for the
entire net tax asset.  By recording a valuation allowance for the entire amount of future tax benefits, the Company has not recognized a deferred tax benefit for income
taxes in its statements of operations.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Lease Commitments

The Company has lease agreements for office space in Charlotte, NC, and Boca Raton, FL.  All lease agreements are with unrelated parties.

There are two Charlotte leases for adjoining spaces that expire on May 31, 2012 and may be renewed for an additional year.  The monthly rent for the combined space is
approximately $2,340.

Beginning November 1, 2009, the company entered into a 24 month lease for office space in Boca Raton, FL. The monthly rental is approximately $1,313.

The rental expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $34,500 for each period.
 
Contingencies

We are not a party to any pending material legal proceedings except as described below. To our knowledge, no governmental authority is contemplating a legal
proceeding in which we would be named as a party.

In April 2010, Brookridge incurred a credit loss of approximately $650,000 due to what appears to be a fraud committed by a Brookridge client (hereinafter referred to as
a "Sherburne Account" client). Anchor’s interest in this loss is 80% or approximately $520,000 and was included in discontinued operations for the year ended December
31, 2010. Brookridge financed inventory purchased by this client who sold the inventory for the benefit of another company not funded by Brookridge resulting in the
loss of Brookridge’s collateral rights in the inventory. As a result, Brookridge recorded a charge of $650,000 for credit losses in April, 2010. As of May 12, 2011, the
Company has recouped a total of $177,000 of the $650,000 credit loss. Anchor is currently pursuing all collection remedies and on October 22, 2010 filed a complaint in
the Superior Court of Stamford/Norwalk, Connecticut against the Administrators of the Estate of David Harvey (“Harvey”). Harvey was the owner of Sherburne and the
Company is pursuing its rights under the personal guarantee that Harvey provided.  The complaint is demanding principal of approximately $485,000 plus interest and
damages.
 
14. ACQUSITION AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:

On December 4, 2009, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”) with Brookridge Funding, LLC (the “Seller”)
providing for the acquisition of certain assets and accounts of Seller’s purchase order finance business (the “Acquired Business”).  The closing of the acquisition took
place on December 7, 2009.  In connection with the transaction, the Company and Seller’s principals invested $1.5 million in Brookridge which operated the Acquired
Business.  The purchase price for the Acquired Business was $2,389,824 representing the fair market value of the Acquired Business’s purchased accounts receivable and
purchase order advances.
 
Since the purchase price equaled the fair market value of the net assets acquired, no Goodwill was recorded for the initial transaction.
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For five years, the Seller was to receive 20% of Brookridge’s net operating income, paid quarterly, up to a total of $800,000. Based on discounted cash flow and net
present value analyses, the Company recorded $480,000 of Goodwill and Intangibles and a corresponding liability in connection with contingent payments due to the
Seller.

On October 6, 2010, Anchor Funding Services, Inc. entered into a Rescission Agreement with the Minority Members, namely, John A. McNiff, III and Michael P. Hilton
(collectively the "Buyers") of Brookridge Funding Services, LLC ("Brookridge"). Our Brookridge operations have been reclassified as discontinued operations in
Consolidated Financial Statements for three months and nine months ended September 30, 2011. The following is a summary of the operating results of our discontinued
operations:

  
Three Months

Ended   
Nine Months

Ended  

  
September 30,

2011   
September 30,

2011  
       
Net finance revenues  $ -  $ - 
Net loss  $ -  $ (4,000)

Under the terms of the Agreement, the Buyers of Brookridge purchased Anchor's interest in Brookridge at book value of approximately $783,000.
 
At closing, the Company delivered an Assignment of its Membership Interests of Brookridge to the Buyers. The Company executed a Confidentiality Agreement
agreeing to keep confidential and not to use certain information concerning Brookridge. The Buyers executed the Confidentiality Agreement agreeing to keep
confidential certain information concerning the Company and the parties executed a Mutual Release Agreement. The Termination Agreement provides that the Company
during a Restricted Period of two years may not directly or indirectly call upon, contact, solicit, divulge, encourage or appropriate or attempt to call upon, contact, solicit,
diverge, encourage or approach any customer or interfere with the business relationship between customer and Brookridge. The Company is not prohibited from
competing with Brookridge or engaging in the business conducted by Brookridge.
 
Separately from the Rescission Agreement, Brookridge and MGM Funding LLC, a company controlled by our Chief Executive Officer and a director, Morry F. Rubin,
by our director, George Rubin, and by a principal stockholder of the Company, agreed to terminate their Credit Agreement. At closing, no monies were owed by
Brookridge to MGM.
 
Effective as of immediately prior to the Closing and in consideration for the sale of the Purchased Interest, Buyers and Brookridge agree to assign their rights and interest
in the following assets to the Company:
 

(a)  Brookridge’s current website (not including any rights or interest with respect to the Brookridge name, web address or domain name); and
(b)   the Sherburne Account

 
The Agreement provides that the Company shall control collection and recovery efforts under the Sherburne Account and shall keep Buyers reasonably informed
concerning substantive developments pertaining thereto. The Buyers and the Company in connection with such collection and recovery efforts shall share all out-of-
pocket costs and expenses, as well as all collections, in the proportion of eighty percent (80%) by the Company and ten percent (10%) by each Buyer.  The Company
shall pay to Buyers their share of any collections promptly after receipt of same and shall, from time to time, provide each Buyer with copies of any and all invoices
related to the shared costs and expenses, proof of payment therefor and invoice for such expenses as they are incurred, which such invoices shall be payable by each
Buyer within twenty (20) days after delivery.  In the event Buyers shall fail to make any payment due in accordance with the foregoing within ten (10) days after
receiving notice concerning a failure to pay any such invoice, they shall forfeit any and all rights to share in collections.
 
15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
 
On November 8, 2011, Anchor entered into a Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank that is effective November 30, 2011 and replaces its existing credit
facility. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the Bank will advance up to 80% of up to 90% of Anchor’s advances to its
clients. Anchor will pay interest on advances monthly at the 90 Day Libor Rate plus 6.25%.  Anchor will pay the Bank various other monthly fees as defined in the
agreement. The agreement requires that Anchor maintain at all times a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of four to one (4:1).  The agreement contains customary
representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien on all Anchors’ assets.
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 ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes appearing at the end of our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis or set
forth elsewhere in this form 10-Q, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business and related financing, includes forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should review the “Risk Factors” section of our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 for a
discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in
the following discussion and analysis.
 
Executive Overview

Our business objective is to create a well-recognized, national financial services firm for small businesses providing accounts receivable funding (factoring), outsourcing
of accounts receivable management including collections and the risk of customer default and other specialty finance products including, but not limited to purchase
order funding and government contract funding. For certain service businesses, Anchor also provides back office support including payroll, payroll tax compliance and
invoice processing services. We provide our services to clients nationwide and may expand our services internationally in the future. We plan to achieve our growth
objectives as described below through a combination of strategic and add-on acquisitions of other factoring and related specialty finance firms that serve small businesses
in the United States and Canada and internal growth through mass media marketing initiatives. Our principal operations for Anchor are located in Charlotte, North
Carolina. We maintain an executive office in Boca Raton, Florida which includes the Company’s sales and marketing functions.
 
Summary of Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments, including those related
to credit provisions, intangible assets, contingencies, litigation and income taxes.  Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience as well as
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Management believes the following critical accounting policies, among others, reflect the more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

 
Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and, its wholly owned
subsidiary, Anchor Funding Services, LLC (continuing operations). Anchor’s former 80% interest in Brookridge Funding Services, LLC is reflected in the consolidated
statements of operations and the consolidated statements of cash flows as discontinued operations for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2011.
 
Estimates – The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Revenue Recognition – The Company charges fees to its customers in one of two ways as follows:

1)           Fixed Transaction Fee. Fixed transaction fees are a fixed percentage of the purchased invoice and purchase order advance.  This percentage does
not change from the date the purchased invoice is funded until the date the purchased invoice is collected.
 
2)           Variable Transaction Fee.  Variable transaction fees are variable based on the length of time the purchased invoice and purchase order advance is
outstanding.   As specified in its contract with the client, the Company charges variable increasing percentages of the purchased invoice or purchase order
advance as time elapses from the purchase date to the collection date.

For both Fixed and Variable Transaction fees, the Company recognizes revenue by using one of two methods depending on the type of customer.  For new customers the
Company recognizes revenue using the cost recovery method.  For established customers the Company recognizes revenue using the accrual method.

 Under the cost recovery method, all revenue is recognized upon collection of the entire amount of purchased accounts receivable.

The Company considers new customers to be accounts whose initial funding has been within the last three months or less.  Management believes it needs three months of
history to reasonably estimate a customer’s collection period and accrued revenues.  If three months of history has a limited number of transactions, the cost recovery
method will continue to be used until a reasonable revenue estimate can be made based on additional history.  Once the Company obtains sufficient historical experience,
it will begin using the accrual method to recognize revenue.

For established customers the Company uses the accrual method of accounting.  The Company applies this method by multiplying the historical yield, for each customer,
times the amount advanced on each purchased invoice outstanding for that customer, times the portion of a year that the advance is outstanding.  The customers’
historical yield is based on the Company’s last six months of experience with the customer along with the Company’s experience in the customer’s industry, if applicable.

The amounts recorded as revenue under the accrual method described above are estimates.  As purchased invoices and purchase order advances are collected, the
Company records the appropriate adjustments to record the actual revenue earned on each purchased invoice and purchase order advance. Adjustments from the
estimated revenue to the actual revenue have not been material.

Retained Interest in Purchased Accounts Receivable – Retained interest in purchased accounts receivable represents the gross amount of invoices purchased and
advances on purchase orders from clients less amounts maintained in a reserve account.  For factoring transactions, the Company purchases a customer’s accounts
receivable and advances them a percentage of the invoice total.  The difference between the purchase price and amount advanced is maintained in a reserve account.  The
reserve account is used to offset any potential losses the Company may have related to the purchased accounts receivable.  For purchase order transactions, the company
advances and pays for up to 100% of the product’s cost.

The Company’s factoring and security agreements with their customers include various recourse provisions requiring the customers to repurchase accounts receivable if
certain conditions, as defined in the factoring and security agreement, are met.

Senior management reviews the status of uncollected purchased accounts receivable and purchase order advances monthly to determine if any are uncollectible.  The
Company has a security interest in the accounts receivable and inventory purchased and, on a case-by-case basis, may have additional collateral.  The Company files
security interests in the property securing their advances.  Access to this collateral is dependent upon the laws and regulations in each state where the security interest is
filed.  Additionally, the Company has varying types of personal guarantees from their customers relating to the purchased accounts receivable and purchase order
advances.

Management considered approximately $76,200 of their September 30, 2011 and $80,500 of their December 31, 2010 retained interest in purchased accounts receivable
to be uncollectible.

Management believes the fair value of the retained interest in purchased accounts receivable approximates its recorded value because of the relatively short term nature
of the purchased receivable and the fact that the majority of these invoices have been subsequently collected. As of September 30, 2011, accounts receivable purchased
over 90 days old and still accruing fees totaled approximately $211,800. None of this amount was related to a certain client that seasonally receives payments from its
customers from October through January each year.
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Property and Equipment – Property and equipment, consisting of furniture and fixtures and computers and software, are stated at cost.  Depreciation is provided over
the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets using the straight-line method.  Estimated useful lives range from 2 to 7 years.

Advertising Costs – The Company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred.  Total advertising costs were approximately $65,000 and $52,000 for the quarters
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $179,200 and $194,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010, respectively.

Earnings per Share – Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period.  Dilutive earnings per share include the potential impact of dilutive securities, such as convertible preferred stock, stock options and stock
warrants.  The dilutive effect of stock options and warrants is computed using the treasury stock method, which assumes the repurchase of common shares at the average
market price.

Under the treasury stock method, options and warrants will have dilutive effect when the average price of common stock during the period exceeds the exercise price of
options or warrants.  For the quarters ending September 30, 2011 and 2010, the average price of common stock was less than the exercise price of the options and
warrants. For the nine months ending September 30, 2011 and 2010, the average price of common stock was less than the exercise price of the options and warrants.   

 Also when there is a year-to-date loss from continuing operations, potential common shares should not be included in the computation of diluted earnings per share,
since they would have an anti-dilutive effect.  For the three months and nine months ending September 30, 2010 there was a loss from continuing operations.  

Stock Based Compensation - The fair value of transactions in which the Company exchanges its equity instruments for employee services (share-based payment
transactions) must be recognized as an expense in the financial statements as services are performed.

Compensation expense is determined by reference to the fair value of an award on the date of grant and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. We
have elected to use the Black-Scholes-Merton (BSM) pricing model to determine the fair value of all stock option awards.
 
 See Note 8 for the impact on the operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments – The carrying value of cash equivalents, retained interest in purchased accounts receivable, due to financial institution, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximates their fair value.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid cash investment funds with original maturities of three months or less when
acquired.

Income Taxes –The Company is a “C” corporation for income tax purposes.  In a “C” corporation income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported
in the financial statements plus deferred income taxes related to the differences between financial statement and taxable income.
 
The primary differences between financial statement and taxable income for the Company are as follows:

●Compensation costs related to the issuance of stock options
●Use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debts

●Differences in basis of property and equipment between financial and income tax reporting
●Net operating loss carryforwards.
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The deferred tax asset represents the future tax return consequences of utilizing these items.   Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation reserve, when management is
uncertain if the net deferred tax assets will ever be realized.
 
In July 2006, FASB issued guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions which clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions.  This guidance
requires that the Company recognize in its consolidated financial statements, the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on
audit, based on the technical merits of the position.
 
The Company applied this guidance to all its tax positions, including tax positions taken and those expected to be taken, under the transition provision of the
interpretation.
 
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized no liability for uncertain tax positions.
 
The Company classifies interest accrued on unrecognized tax benefits with interest expense.  Penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits are classified with operating
expenses.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 vs. Three Months Ended September 30, 2010

Finance revenues from continuing operations decreased 16.5% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 to $561,014 compared to $672,184 for the comparable
period of the prior year.   The change in revenue was primarily due to a major customer ending its relationship with Anchor in March 2011. The loss in revenues from
this customer of approximately $183,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2010 was partially offset by an increase in business from existing clients and new
clients. 
 
The Company had interest expense from continuing operations of $107,595 for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to interest expense of $254,366 for
the three months ended September 30, 2010. This change is the result of a number of factors including (i) the Company borrowing less from a related party (see Note 7),
(ii) the Company using its own capital received from the Brookridge Rescission (See Note 14) to fund factoring and purchase order transactions and (iii) the decrease in
rate of the Company’s Credit Facility from a financial institution (see Note 5).

Operating expenses from continuing operations for the three months ended September 30, 2011 were $393,617 compared to $365,929 for the three months ended
September 30, 2010, a 7.6% increase.  This increase is attributable to an increase in various expenses for the quarter ending September 30, 2011, including advertising,
which was approximately $10,000 higher than the comparable period last year.

The reduction in interest expense offset the decrease in revenues and resulted in net income from continuing operations for the three months ended September 30, 2011 of
$61,448 compared to net  income of $51,572 for the three months ended September 30, 2010.
 
The following table compares the operating results for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010:
 
             
             
     Three Months Ended September 30, 
  2011   2010   $ Change   % Change  
Finance revenues  $ 561,014  $ 672,184  $ (111,170)   (16.5)
Interest expense, net  and commissions   (107,595)   (254,366)   146,771   (57.7)
Net finance revenues   453,419   417,818   35,601   8.5 
Benefit (Provision) for  credit losses   1,646   (317)   1,963   (619.2)
Finance revenues, net of interest expense and credit losses   455,065   417,501   37,564   9.0 
Operating expenses   393,617   365,929   27,688   7.6 
Net income from continuing operations before income taxes   61,448   51,572   9,876   - 
Income tax (provision) benefit:   -   -   -   - 
Income from continuing operations   61,448   51,572   9,876   - 
Income from discontinued operations   -   128,291   (128,291)   - 
Net income   61,448   179,863   (118,415)   - 
Less: Noncontrolling interest share   -   27,717   (27,717)   - 
Controlling interest share  $ 61,448  $ 152,146  $ (90,698)   - 
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 vs. Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010

Finance revenues from continuing operations increased 6.0% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 to $1,880,154 compared to $1,773,736 for the comparable
period of the prior year.   The change in revenue was primarily due to an increase in business from existing clients and new clients, which offset a loss of a major
customer. This major customer  accounted for approximately $95,000 in revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to approximately $275,000
for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.
 
The Company had interest expense from continuing operations of $411,550 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to interest expense of $604,520 for
the nine months ended September 30, 2010. This change is the result of a number of factors including (i) the Company borrowing less from a related party (see Note 7),
(ii) the Company using its own capital received from the Brookridge Rescission (See Note14) to fund factoring and purchase order transactions and (iii) the decrease in
rate of the Company’s Credit Facility from a financial institution (see Note 5).

Operating expenses from continuing operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 were $1,214,095 compared to $1,236,900 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2010, a 1.8% decrease.  This decrease is attributable to a decrease in various expenses for the quarter ending September 30, 2011.

The combination of reduced operating expenses  and interest expense and increased finance revenues resulted in net income from continuing operations for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 of $255,981 compared to a net loss of $(67,087) for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.

The following table compares the operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010:
 
     Nine Months Ended  September  30, 
  2011   2010   $ Change   % Change  
Finance revenues  $ 1,880,154  $ 1,773,736  $ 106,418   6.0 
Interest expense, net  and commissions   (411,550)   (604,520)   192,970   (31.9)
Net finance revenues   1,468,604   1,169,216   299,388   25.6 
Benefit for  credit losses   1,472   597   875   - 
Finance revenues, net of interest expense and credit losses   1,470,076   1,169,813   300,263   25.7 
Operating expenses   1,214,095   1,236,900   (22,805)   (1.8)
Net income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes   255,981   (67,087)   323,068   - 
Income tax (provision) benefit:   -   -   -   - 
Income (loss) from continuing operations   255,981   (67,087)   323,068   - 
Loss from discontinued operations   (4,000)   (527,558)   523,558   (99.2)
Net income (loss)   251,981   (594,645)   846,626   - 
Less: Noncontrolling interest share   -   (91,931)   91,931   - 
Controlling interest share  $ 251,981  $ (502,714)  $ 754,695   - 
                 
 
Liquidity

Cash Flow Summary

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1,989,657 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and was primarily due to our net income for the period and cash
provided by operating assets, primarily from a decrease of $1,674,907 in purchased accounts receivable. Increases and decreases in prepaid expenses, accounts payable,
accrued payroll and accrued expenses were primarily the result of timing of payments and receipts.

Net cash used by operating activities was $(3,513,225) for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and was primarily due to cash used in acquiring operating assets,
primarily to purchase accounts receivable. The increase in retained interest in purchased accounts receivable was $3,447,680. Increases and decreases in prepaid
expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll and accrued expenses were primarily the result of timing of payments and receipts. Net cash provided by operating activities
from discontinued operations was $527,329 for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities
 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, net cash used in investing activities was $17,768 for the purchase of property and equipment.
 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2010 net cash used in investing activities was $17,663 for the purchase of property and equipment.
 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
 
Net cash used in financing activities (from continuing operations) was $2,051,668 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, and was primarily due to repayments
on borrowings from a financial institution and lender.

Net cash provided by financing activities (from continuing operations) was $3,251,308 for the nine months ended September 30, 2010, and was primarily due to proceeds
from borrowings from a financial institution and lender.

Net cash provided by financing activities from discontinued operations was $10,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.
 
Capital Resources

We have the availability of a $7 million (expandable to $9 million) senior accounts receivable facility with an institutional asset based lender which advances funds
against up to 90% of “eligible net factored accounts receivable” (minus client reserves as lender may establish in good faith) as defined in Anchor’s agreement with its
institutional lender. The agreement’s anniversary date is November 30, 2010 and automatically renews each year for an additional year provided that the Company has
not provided 60 days notice to the financial institution in advance of the anniversary date. This facility is secured by our assets, and contains certain standard covenants,
representations and warranties for loans of this type.  In the event that we fail to comply with the covenant(s) and the lender does not waive such non-compliance, we
could be in default of our credit facility, which could subject us to penalty rates of interest and accelerate the maturity of the outstanding balances.  The Credit Agreement
contains standard representations, warranties and events of default for facilities of this type.  Occurrences of an event of default under our credit facility allow the lender
to accelerate the payment of the loans and/or terminate the commitments to lend, in addition to other legal remedies, including foreclosure on collateral.

On September 22, 2011, Anchor gave notice to the financial institution that it was electing not to renew the facility when it expires at the end of its current term on
November 30, 2011. On November 8, 2011, Anchor entered into a Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank that is effective November 30, 2011 and replaces
its existing credit facility. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the Bank will advance up to 80% of up to 90% of Anchor’s
advances to its clients. Anchor will pay interest on advances monthly at the 90 Day Libor Rate plus 6.25%.  Anchor will pay the Bank various other monthly fees as
defined in the agreement. The agreement requires that Anchor maintain at all times a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of four to one (4:1).  The agreement contains
customary representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien on all Anchors’ assets.
In the event we are not able to maintain adequate credit facilities for our factoring, purchase order financing and acquisition needs on commercially reasonable terms, our
ability to operate our business and complete one or more acquisitions would be significantly impacted and our financial condition and results of operations could
suffer.  We can provide no assurances that replacement facilities will be obtained by us on terms satisfactory to us, if at all.
 
On March 23, 2010, the Board of Directors approved and Anchor entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM. Morry F. Rubin is the managing
member of MGM. The money to be borrowed under the note was subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility. The Promissory Note was to assist Anchor
in funding up to 50% of the funds employed for a specific client that Anchor’s senior lender will only fund up to 50% of the funds employed. The senior lender’s
limitation is based on the size of the client’s credit facility. The MGM Promissory Note is a demand note.  In addition, when Anchor typically has significant invoice
purchase requests from clients, MGM periodically makes short-term loans to Anchor Funding Services, Inc. which then advances the funds to Anchor.  Anchor does not
receive same day availability of funds from its senior lender for its daily client invoice purchases requiring it to use its own capital and MGM to meet client demand.
These loans were payable on demand and accrued interest at 20% per annum. This note was subsequently replaced by the Promissory Note described below.

On April 26, 2011, the Board of Directors approved and the Company entered into a Promissory Note for up to $2 million from MGM. The money to be borrowed under
the note is subordinate to Anchor’s accounts receivable credit facility with a senior lender, which requires funds employed to be no less than $5,000,000 before Anchor
may borrow funds from MGM. The Promissory Note is to assist Anchor in providing factoring and purchase order funding facilities to some of its clients and it replaces
an earlier agreement between the parties, described above.. This facility will supplement Anchor's $7 Million (which is expandable to $9 Million) credit line with a senior
lender. The MGM Promissory Note is a demand note payable together with interest at the rate of 11% per annum.  If mutually agreed upon in writing by Anchor and
MGM, and Anchor's purchase order fundings exceed $1 Million, then interest may accrue on the portion of the unpaid balance of this Note that is funding purchase order
advances that are in excess of $1 Million at a rate equal to twenty percent (20.0%) per annum. At September 30, 2011, Anchor owed $0 to MGM and $290,000 to MGM
as of December 31, 2010. Anchor paid $0 of interest to MGM for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and $67,971 of interest to MGM for the three months
ended September 30, 2010.
 
 

25



 
 
Based on our current cash position and our Credit Facilities, we believe can meet our cash needs for the next 12 to 15 months and support our anticipated organic growth.
In the event we acquire another company, we may need additional equity or subordinated debt financing and/or a new credit facility to complete the transaction and our
daily cash needs and liquidity could change based on the needs of the combined companies.  At that time, in the event we are not able to obtain adequate new facilities
and/or financing to complete the acquisition (if needed) and to operate the combined companies financing needs on commercially reasonable terms, our ability to operate
and expand our business would be significantly impacted and our financial condition and results of operations could suffer.
 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. Our
primary exposure to market risk is interest rate risk associated with our short term money market investments. The Company does not have any financial instruments held
for trading or other speculative purposes and does not invest in derivative financial instruments, interest rate swaps or other investments that alter interest rate exposure.
The Company does not have any credit facilities with variable interest rates.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's Exchange Act reports
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure based closely on the definition of "disclosure controls and procedures" in Rule 13a-15(e). In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and the Company's Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the
foregoing, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the
reasonable assurance level at the end of our most recent quarter. There have been no changes in the Company's disclosure controls and procedures or in other factors that
could affect the disclosure controls subsequent to the date the Company completed its evaluation. Therefore, no corrective actions were taken.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are
reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS:
 
We are not a party to any pending material legal proceedings except as described below. To our knowledge, no governmental authority is contemplating commencing a
legal proceeding in which we would be named as a party.

In April 2010, Brookridge incurred a credit loss of approximately $650,000 due to what appears to be a fraud committed by a Brookridge client (hereinafter referred to as
a "Sherburne Account" client). Anchor’s interest in this loss is 80% or approximately $520,000 and is included in discontinued operations. Brookridge financed inventory
purchased by this client who sold the inventory for the benefit of another company not funded by Brookridge resulting in the loss of Brookridge’s collateral rights in the
inventory. As a result, Brookridge recorded a charge of $650,000 for credit losses in April, 2010. As of August 4, 2011 the Company has recouped a total of $177,000 of
the $650,000 of credit losses. Anchor is currently pursuing all collection remedies and on October 22, 2010 filed a complaint in the Superior Court of Stamford/Norwalk,
Connecticut against the Administrators of the Estate of David Harvey (“Harvey”). Harvey was the owner of Sherburne and the Company is pursuing its rights under the
personal guarantee that Harvey provided.  The Complaint is demanding principal of approximately $485,000 plus interest and damages.
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors:
 

As a Smaller Reporting Company as defined Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and in item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure reporting
obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item 1A.
 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS:
 
(a)   For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, there were no sales of unregistered securities.
 
(b)   Rule 463 of the Securities Act is not applicable to the Company.

(c)   In the nine months ended September 30, 2011, there were no repurchases by the Company of its Common Stock.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES:
 

Not applicable.
 

ITEM 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED:
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION:
 
Not applicable.

ITEM 6.                  EXHIBITS:

The following exhibits are all previously filed in connection with our Form 10-SB, as amended, unless otherwise noted.
              
 2.1 Exchange Agreement
 3.1 Certificate of Incorporation-BTHC,INC.
 3.2 Certificate of Merger of BTHC XI, LLC into BTHC XI, Inc.
 3.3 Certificate of Amendment
 3.4 Designation of Rights and Preferences-Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock
 3.5 Amended and Restated By-laws
 4.1 Form of Placement Agent Warrant issued to Fordham Financial Management
 10.1 Directors’ Compensation Agreement-George Rubin
 10.2 Employment Contract-Morry F. Rubin
 10.3 Employment Contract-Brad Bernstein
 10.4 Agreement-Line of Credit
 10.5 Fordham Financial Management-Consulting Agreement
 10.6 Facilities Lease – Florida
 10.7 Facilities Lease – North Carolina
10.8 Loan and Security Agreement (1)
10.9 Revolving Note (1)
10.10 Debt Subordination Agreement (1)
10.11 Guaranty Agreement (Morry Rubin) (1)
10.12 Guaranty Agreement (Brad Bernstein)(1)
10.13 Continuing Guaranty Agreement (1)
10.14 Pledge Agreement (1)
10.16 Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and Brookridge Funding LLC (2)
10.17 Senior Credit Facility between the Company and MGM Funding LLC  (2)
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 10.18 Senior Credit Facility Guarantee - Michael P. Hilton and John A. McNiff III  (4)
10.19 Employment Agreement - Michael P. Hilton  (4)
10.20 Employment Agreement - John A. McNiff  (4)
10.21 Accounts Receivable Credit Facility with Greystone Commercial Services LP  (3)
10.22 Memorandum of Understanding - Re: Rescission Agreement*
10.23 Rescission Agreement and Exhibits Thereto (5)
10.24 Termination Agreement by and between Brookridge Funding Services LLC and MGM Funding LLC.(5)
10.25 First Amendment to Factoring Agreement (6)
10.26 Promissory Note dated April 26, 2011 between Anchor Funding Services, Inc. and MGM Funding, LLC (7)
10.27 Rediscount Facility Agreement with TAB Bank*
10.28 Form of Validity Warranty to TAB Bank*
21.21 Subsidiaries of Registrant listing state of incorporation (4)
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification – Principal Executive Officer *
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification – Principal Financial Officer *
32.1 Section 1350 Certification – Principal Executive Officer *
32.2 Section 1350 Certification – Principal Financial Officer *
99.1 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan
99.2 Form of Non-Qualified Option under 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan
99.3 Amendment to 2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan increasing the Plan to 4,200,000 shares  
99.4 Press Release - Results of Operations - Third Quarter 2011  *
101.INS XBRL Instance Document,XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema *
101.SCH Document, XBRL Taxonomy Extension *
101.CAL Calculation Linkbase, XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition *
101.DEF Linkbase,XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels *
101.LAB Linkbase, XBRL Taxonomy Extension *
101.PRE Presentation Linkbase *
 ___________________
  *  Filed herewith.

 
(1)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed November 24, 2008 (date of earliest event November 21, 2008).

 
(2)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed December 8, 2009 (date of earliest event -December 4, 2009).

 
(3)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed December 2, 2009 (date of earliest event -November 30, 2009).

 
(4)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

 
(5)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed October 12, 2010 (date of earliest event -October 6, 2010).

 
(6)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

 
(7)  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed April 28, 2011 (date of earliest event -April 26, 2011).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
 ANCHOR FUNDING SERVICES, INC.  
    
Date:  November 14, 2011 By: /s/ Morry F. Rubin    
  Morry F. Rubin  
  Principal Executive Officer  
    

    
Date: November 14, 2011 By: /s/ Brad Bernstein  
  Brad Bernstein  
  President and Principal Financial Officer  
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EXHIBIT 10.27
 

REDISCOUNT FACILITY AGREEMENT

THIS REDISCOUNT FACILITY AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the Effective Date set forth on Schedule A attached hereto, by and between
Transportation Alliance Bank Inc. dba TAB Bank, a Utah industrial loan corporation (“Bank”), with its principal place of business located at 4185 Harrison Blvd.,
Suite 200, Ogden, Utah 84403, and Anchor Funding Services, LLC, a North Carolina  limited liability company (“Factor”), with its principal place of business at the
location set forth on Schedule A attached hereto.

WHEREAS, Factor has entered into and will hereafter enter into certain Receivable Financing Agreements with the Sellers named therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to such Receivable Financing Agreements, each Seller has or will agree to sell to Factor from time to time all of its right, title and interest in and to
certain of its identified Accounts;

 
WHEREAS, a Seller’s obligations under its Receivable Financing Agreement are secured by a security interest in Seller’s assets as more fully identified in the
Receivable Financing Agreement, and Seller authorizes Factor to record UCC-1 Financing Statements in order to perfect Factor’s security interest in Seller’s securing
assets; and

WHEREAS, Bank agrees to provide, and Factor agrees to utilize, a revolving Rediscount Facility secured by the Eligible Accounts and other securing assets of each
Approved Seller.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants of the parties herein set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Bank and Factor hereby covenant and agree as follows:

1.     Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings as set forth immediately below or elsewhere in this Agreement.  Any capitalized terms not
herein defined shall have the meaning set forth in the UCC:

“Account” means all Accounts as defined in the UCC, accounts receivable, all amounts owing to Seller under any rental agreement or lease, payments on construction
contracts, promissory notes or on any other indebtedness, all rights to payment customarily or for accounting purposes classified as accounts receivable, and all rights to
payment, proceeds or distributions under any contract of Seller, presently existing or hereafter created, and all proceeds thereof.

“Account Debtor” means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust or any other entity or organization obligated for payment of any
Account.

"Accounting Standards" means (i) in the case of consolidated financial statements and reports, conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and fully and
fairly representing the financial condition as of the date thereof and the results of operations for the period or periods covered thereby, consistent with other financial
statements of Factor previously delivered to Bank, and (ii) in the case of calculations, definitions, and covenants, generally accepted accounting principles consistent with
those used in the preparation of financial statements of Factor previously delivered to Bank.
“Advance” means any funds, proceeds or other sums loaned, advanced or charged to Factor under the Facility and/or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

“Affiliates” means any current or future Person which, directly or indirectly, owns or controls, is owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership or control with
Factor.

“Approved Seller” means a Seller who has been approved by Bank as a Seller of Accounts pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement.

“Availability” shall have that meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.1 of this Agreement.

“Availability Certificate” shall have that meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.1 of this Agreement.

“Avoidance Claim” means any claim that any payment received by Bank from or for the account of an Account Debtor or Seller is an impugned transaction under any
state or federal bankruptcy, insolvency, preference, corporate or other similar laws.

“Bank Advance Rate” means that percentage of the Factor Advance on Approved Sellers’ Accounts which Bank will advance to Factor under the Facility in accordance
with Section 6.1, which Bank advance rate percentage is set forth in Schedule A attached hereto.

“Collateral” means all presently owned or hereafter acquired assets of Factor, including, without limitation, the following:

(a)  All Accounts as defined in the UCC, accounts receivable, chattel paper, and general intangibles, including, but not limited to, tax refunds, registered and unregistered
patents, trademarks, service marks, copyrights, trade names, trade secrets, customer lists, licenses, documents, instruments, lockboxes, deposit accounts, bank accounts,
financial accounts, certificates of deposit, and all rights of Factor as a seller of goods, including rights of reclamation, replevin and stoppage in transit;

(b)  All Factor’s contract rights, including without limitation, all rights of Factor in, to and under the Receivable Financing Agreements and other agreements related
thereto, and to the Accounts purchased by Factor from all Sellers;

(c)  All Inventory as defined in the UCC, wherever located, all goods, merchandise or other personal property held for sale or lease, names or marks affixed thereto for
purposes of selling or identifying the same or the seller or manufacturer thereof and all related rights, title and interest, all raw materials, work or goods in process or
materials or supplies of every nature used, consumed or to be used in Factor’s business, all packaging and shipping materials, and all other goods customarily or for
accounting purposes classified as inventory of Factor, now owned or hereafter acquired or created, all proceeds and products of the foregoing and all additions and
accessions to, replacements of, insurance or condemnation proceeds of, and documents covering any of the foregoing, all property received wholly or partially in trade or
exchange for any of the foregoing, all leases of any of the foregoing, and all rents, revenues, issues, profits and proceeds arising from the sale, lease, license,
encumbrance, collection, or any other temporary or permanent disposition of any of the foregoing or any interest therein;
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(d)  All Equipment and fixtures and goods, wherever located, and all additions, substitutions, replacements (including spare parts), and accessions thereof and thereto;

(e)  All books and records relating to all of the foregoing property and interests in property, including, without limitation, all computer programs, printed output and
computer readable data in the possession or control of Factor, any computer service bureau or other third party;

(f)  All personal property and investment property; and

(g)  All proceeds of the foregoing, including but not limited to, all insurance proceeds, all claims against third parties for loss or destruction of or damage to any of the
foregoing, and all income from the lease or rental of any of the foregoing.

“Commitment” means the amount set forth in Schedule A attached hereto, or such other amount as Bank shall deem appropriate in its sole discretion, representing the
maximum amount of Advances, Fees, charges and other amounts which may be made advanced or charged to Factor under the Facility as contemplated by this
Agreement.

“Default Rate” means the Interest Rate plus four percent (4.00%) per annum.

“Eligible Account” shall mean Accounts which satisfy the following criteria:
 
(a)   The Account meets all applicable representations and warranties concerning the Collateral set forth in the Seller’s applicable Receivable Financing Agreement.

(b)   The Account is due and payable not more than sixty (60) days from the date of the Invoice evidencing the Account, and is not more than ninety (90) days past the
date of Invoice.

(c)   The Account is a bona fide obligation of the Account Debtor for the amount identified on the records of Factor, and there have been no payments, deductions,
credits, payment terms, or other modifications or reductions in the amount owing on such Account except (i) as shown on the face of the Invoice, (ii) discounts allowed
in the ordinary course of business which have been disclosed in the Availability Certificate; and (iii) as otherwise shown on the records of Seller and/or Factor and
disclosed to Bank prior to Bank making any Advance based upon the Account.

(d)   There are no defenses or setoffs to payment of the Account which can be asserted by way of defense or counterclaim against Seller, Factor and/or Bank, and to the
best knowledge of Factor, the Account will be timely paid in full by the Account Debtor.

(e)   Performance of all services giving rise to the Account has been completed and all goods giving rise to the Account have been delivered, and Factor has possession of
or has submitted to Bank shipping or delivery receipts for all such goods.

(f)   All services performed and goods sold which give rise to the Account have been rendered or sold in compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and
regulations, and were performed or sold in the ordinary course of Seller’s business.

(g)  There have been no extensions, modifications, or other agreements relating to payment of the Account except as otherwise shown on the face of the Invoice and
disclosed in writing to Bank prior to Bank making any Advance based upon the Account.

(h)   The Account Debtor is located or authorized to do business within the United States or Canada (excluding the Province of Quebec) and maintains an office and
transacts business in the United States of America, and the Account is payable exclusively in U.S. currency, or the Account is backed by a letter of credit or credit
insurance in a form and issued by a bank or insurer, as the case may be, acceptable to Bank in Bank’s sole discretion.
(i)   No proceeding has been commenced or petition filed under any bankruptcy or insolvency law by or against the Account Debtor; no receiver, trustee or custodian has
been appointed for any part of the property of the Account Debtor; and no property of the Account Debtor has been assigned for the benefit of creditors.

(j)   If twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the Accounts owing to Seller or Factor by any particular Account Debtor do not meet the specifications of Paragraph (b) of
this definition of Eligible Accounts, all Accounts owing by such Account Debtor shall not be Eligible Accounts.
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(k)   The Account is not owing by an Account Debtor for whom the terms of sale by Seller are cash on delivery or otherwise considered or treated as a cash sale.

(l)   The Seller and Factor do not owe an account payable to the Account Debtor which could be set off against the receivable Account.

(m)   If the total of all outstanding Accounts owing by any single Account Debtor to a Seller equals twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the total outstanding current
Accounts owing to Seller, the amount of Accounts owing by that Account Debtor which equal or exceed this twenty-five percent (25%) requirement shall not be Eligible
Accounts unless Bank has received satisfactory credit information concerning the Account Debtor and Bank has agreed in writing to accept the amount in excess of this
twenty-five percent (25%) requirement as Eligible Accounts.

(n)   The Account is not subject to any type of retainage by the Account Debtor.

(o)   The Account does not arise from goods placed on consignment, guaranteed sale, or other terms by reason of which the payment by the Account Debtor may be
conditional.

(p)   The Account is not owing by an employee, officer, or director of Seller or of Factor.

(q)  The Account is not owing by a parent, subsidiary, sister company, or other company related to or an Affiliate of Seller or Factor.

(r)   The Account is not owing by an Account Debtor deemed by Bank in its commercially reasonable discretion to be unacceptable.

“Events of Default” shall have that meaning set forth in Section 19.1 of this Agreement.

“Face Amount” means the total amount due on an Account as specified on the Account’s Invoice, at the time of Factor’s purchase of such Account from Seller, less any
finance charges included therein.

“Facility” shall have that meaning set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement.

“Factor Advance” shall have that meaning ascribed thereto in Section 6.1 of this Agreement.

“Factor Advance Rate” shall mean that percentage of the face value of Approved Sellers’ Accounts which may be advanced by Factor to such Seller pursuant to Section
6.1 herein, which Factor advance rate percentage is set forth in Schedule A attached hereto.
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“Factor Deposit Account” means any deposit account maintained by Factor, or represented by an employee of Factor to be maintained by Factor, and any other account
of Factor into which Factor directs Bank to make Advances or payments of any obligations owed by Bank to Factor.

“Fees” shall mean all of those fees referenced and set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement.
 
“Guarantor” means those Person(s) identified in Schedule A attached hereto who are guaranteeing Factor’s payment and performance of the Obligations.

“Initial Term” shall mean the initial effective period or term of this Agreement, having the duration set forth in Schedule A attached hereto.

“Interest” shall mean the interest payable on the outstanding balance of the Facility, and/or on any other amounts due from Factor to Bank hereunder, calculated at the
Interest Rate or the Default Rate, as applicable.

“Interest Rate” shall mean that rate of interest set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.

“Invoice” means the primary billing document or invoice evidencing an Account.

“Lockbox Bank” shall mean any U.S. federally regulated bank designated by Factor to establish and maintain the depository lockbox account referenced in Section 7 of
this Agreement.

“Material Adverse Effect” means: (i) a material adverse change in, or a material adverse effect upon the operations, business, assets, property, liabilities (actual or
contingent) or financial condition of the Factor or any Guarantor; (ii) a material impairment of the rights and remedies of Bank under this Agreement; (iii) a material
impairment of the ability of the Factor or any Guarantor to perform any of their respective Obligations; or (iv) a material adverse effect upon the legality, validity, binding
effect or enforceability against the Factor or any Guarantor of this Agreement or any guaranty agreement.

“Obligation” means all present and future obligations owing by Factor to Bank whether or not for the payment of money, whether or not evidenced by any note or other
instrument, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, joint or several, primary or secondary, liquidated or unliquidated, secured or
unsecured, original or renewed or extended, whether arising before, during or after the commencement of any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar proceeding in
which Factor is a debtor or an insolvent debtor, including but not limited to any obligations arising pursuant to this Agreement, any letters of credit, acceptance
transactions, or any other financial accommodations or agreements.

“Organizational Documents” means, in the case of a corporation, its Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws; in the case of a general partnership, its Articles of
Partnership; in the case of a limited partnership, its Articles of Limited Partnership; in the case of a limited liability company, its Articles of Organization and Operating
Agreement or Regulations, if any; in the case of a limited liability partnership, its Articles of Limited Liability Partnership; or alternatively, in each case, the legal
equivalent thereof in the jurisdiction of its organization, together with schedules, exhibits, amendments, addendums, modifications, replacements, additions, or
restatements of the foregoing, which are in effect.

“Parties” means Factor and Bank.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust or any other legal entity or organization.

“Receivable Financing Agreement” means any of those certain agreements entered into by and between Factor and Sellers whereby Factor provides a Seller with
financing in exchange for the sale and/or securitization of such Seller’s Accounts and/or other assets.

“Required Reserve Amount” means the cumulative total of the respective Reserve Percentage for each Eligible Account multiplied by the unpaid balance of each such
Eligible Account.

“Reserve Account” means the establishment and maintenance of one or more bookkeeping accounts on the books of Bank accounting for those portions of the Required
Reserve Amounts held by Bank, as deemed necessary or appropriate by Bank, to effectuate the terms and conditions set forth herein or otherwise ensure Factor’s
performance with the provisions hereof.

“Reserve Percentage” means the percentage set forth in Schedule A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, or such other percentage as Bank shall
deem appropriate in its sole discretion from time to time.
 
“Reserve Shortfall” means the amount by which the Reserve Account is less than the Required Reserve Amount.

“Seller(s)” means a client or customer of Factor who executes a Receivable Financing Agreement with Factor.

“Subordinate Debt” means any notes or obligations due from Factor to any Person which are subordinate, in a form acceptable to Bank, in all respects to the Obligations
of Factor to Bank.

“UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code.
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2.  Facility and Initial Term.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and provided that Factor has not breached any of the terms of this Agreement,
Bank agrees to advance to Factor, under a revolving rediscount line of credit (“Facility”), from time to time beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the last day of
the Initial Term (or such later date as Bank and Factor shall hereafter agree in writing in connection with the extension of the terms of this Agreement) such Advances as
Factor may request under Section 6 of this Agreement; provided, however, that the aggregate principal amount of all Advances outstanding under the Facility at any time
shall not exceed the lesser of: (i) the Commitment amount; or (ii) the amount of Availability.  Factor may from time to time during the term of the Facility borrow,
partially or wholly repay its outstanding borrowings, and re-borrow, subject to all of the limitations, terms and conditions contained herein. This Agreement shall be
automatically renewed for consecutive one (1) year terms unless and until terminated by written notice of either party sixty (60) days prior to the end of the Initial Term
or any renewal Term.

3.  Fees.

3.1 Origination/Annual Facility Fee.  Upon execution and delivery of this Agreement, Factor shall pay to Bank an origination fee in the amount of one half of one
percent (.50%) of the Commitment amount.  Additionally, on each anniversary of the Effective Date, and for so long as the Facility has not been terminated, Factor shall
pay to Bank an annual fee in an amount equal to one half of one percent (.50%) of the Commitment amount. No portion of any origination fee or annual fee paid shall be
refundable, including, without limitation, in the event of any early termination of this Agreement or upon any termination or reduction of the right of Factor to request
Advances under this Agreement.  Such origination and facility fees shall be payable quarterly by the Factor.

3.2 Non-Utilization Fee.  Factor shall pay to Bank a non-utilization fee in an amount equal to the unused portions of the Commitment existing from time to time,
multiplied by one quarter of one percent (0.25%) per annum.  The non-utilization fee shall be calculated daily, and shall be due and payable on the last business day of
each month.

3.3 Collateral Monitoring Fee.  Factor shall pay to Bank a monthly Collateral monitoring fee in an amount equal to zero percent (0.00%) of the Commitment. The
Collateral monitoring fee shall be paid by Factor to Bank by close of business day on the last business day of the month.

3.4 Early Termination Fee.  Upon any early termination of the Facility by Factor, or, if payment of the Facility is otherwise accelerated due to an Event of Default, then
in addition to any other Fees paid or payable by Factor under this Agreement, Factor shall pay to Bank an early termination fee calculated as follows: (i) if such
termination or acceleration occurs within less than one (1) year of the Effective Date, the early termination fee shall be one percent (1.00%) of the Commitment; and (ii)
if such termination or acceleration occurs more than one (1) year after the Effective Date, the early termination fee shall be one half of one percent (.50%) of the
Commitment. In the event of termination and repayment of the Obligations hereunder on the anniversary date of the Effective Date of this Agreement, no early
termination fee shall be due if Factor has first provided Bank with the sixty (60) day prior written notice of termination set forth in Section 2 above.

3.5 Wire Fees.  Wire fees of twenty dollars ($20.00) per wire will be charged to Factor for Advances and/or any other amounts wired from Bank to Factor pursuant to
this Agreement.

3.6 Misdirected Payment Fee.  Factor shall pay to Bank a misdirected payment fee equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the amount of any payment on account of an
Eligible Account which has been received by Factor and has not deposited in the lockbox account in accordance with Section 7 of this Agreement within two (2) business
days following the date of receipt by Factor.

3.7 Other Fees.  Other periodic fees, such as legal fees and costs, UCC lien and judgment searches, audit fees and field exams fees and costs shall be charged to and
payable by Factor at the Bank’s standard rates, and shall be payable by Factor on the last business day of the month in which a billing therefore is made available to
Factor.

3.8   Payment.   All Fees due from Factor herein shall be paid by Factor to Bank by wire transfer on or before the due date thereof. Notwithstanding such payment
requirement, Bank is hereby authorized to advance and disburse to itself on Factor’s behalf, or to otherwise charge to Factor any Fee due and owing to Bank by Factor,
by: (i) deducting any said Fee from Advances; (ii) charging any such Fee to the Facility; or (iii) deducting said Fee from collections from the lockbox or from any Factor
Deposit Account.

3.9 No Fee Waiver.  The existence of any right of the Bank to self-payment, deduction, or to charge the Facility with respect to any Fees payable by Factor herein shall
not relieve Factor from any Obligation to pay the same where such right has not been exercised by Bank.  No failure by Bank to exercise such rights shall constitute a
waiver by Bank of its rights to such Fees or any waiver of its right to undertake self payment or deduction as provided herein.

4.  Variable Discount.  Factor shall pay Interest to Bank on the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of the Facility at a rate per annum equal to the ninety day
LIBOR Rate plus six and one quarter percent (90 day LIBOR Rate + 6.25%) (“Interest Rate”).  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “LIBOR Rate” shall mean the
fluctuating rate of interest which is publicly reported as the “LIBOR Rate” as published by the 90-day London Interbank Offered Rate,.  Each change in the LIBOR Rate
contemplated hereunder shall take place automatically and without further notice.  Any change in the LIBOR Rate shall be effective as of the first business day following
such adjustment, and such adjusted LIBOR Rate shall be the applicable LIBOR Rate thereafter used in the calculation of interest payable hereunder.  Interest shall be
payable monthly in arrears on the first day of each calendar month.  Factor shall pay all Interest charges by wire transfer by close of business day on which it is due, and
Bank, at its sole option, may deduct said Interest from future Advances under the Facility, from collections from the lockbox or from any Factor Deposit Account, or
otherwise charge the Facility for such Interest.  At any time that Factor may be in default under this Agreement and continuing until such time as all defaults are cured by
Factor as determined by Bank in its sole discretion, the Interest charged to Factor on all amounts due hereunder shall be calculated at the Default Rate.
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5.  Approved Sellers.

5.1 Seller Approval.  Each and every Seller whose Accounts Factor seeks to include in the Availability Certificate shall be submitted to and approved in writing by Bank
before such Accounts may be submitted by Factor for inclusion in the Availability Certificate.  Such approval by Bank shall not oblige Bank to purchase any Account
generated by such Seller, and such approval with respect to each Account may be withheld or cancelled in Bank’ commercially reasonable discretion.  Bank shall attempt
to provide such written approval within five (5) business days of Bank’s receipt of Factor’s written request for approval.  Upon Bank’s approval of an Approved Seller,
Factor may include the Eligible Accounts of the Approved Seller in the calculations of the Availability Certificate for the purpose of calculating the Availability.  No
further formalities are required to facilitate the inclusion of an Approved Seller’s Accounts in the Facility.

5.2 Related Parties.  No parties related to Seller or Factor, including, but not limited to, subsidiaries, parents or Affiliates thereof, shall be deemed an Approved Seller or
an acceptable Account Debtor.

5.3 Seller Concentrations and Restrictions.  Initially, and until such time as Bank notifies Factor in writing to the contrary, any Seller with total collective Accounts
being offered for purchase totaling no more than Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) shall be deemed an Approved Seller.  Any Seller with Invoices
collectively totaling more than said Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) shall be subject to the Bank approval process set forth in Section 5.1 above.

5.4 Account Debtor Concentrations and Restrictions.   Payments on Accounts will be due and payable from creditworthy Account Debtors.  Factor’s credit review
policies and procedures must be reviewed and approved by Bank. Credit limits greater than One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) for any given Account
Debtor must be reviewed and approved by Bank in writing, and said approval may be withheld in Bank’s commercially reasonable discretion.  Factor may not purchase
Accounts owed by any one Account Debtor in an amount at any one time outstanding in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars  ($150,000.00) without the prior
written approval of Bank, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or conditioned, and a decision on such approval shall be provided within two (2) business
days of request.

6.     Advance Procedures and Rules.

6.1 Availability Certificate.  The Availability and advancement of funds under the Facility shall be based upon a duly executed “Availability Certificate” in a form
substantially similar to the Availability Certificate attached hereto as Schedule B, as amended from time to time by Bank in its sole discretion.  Only Approved Sellers
and Eligible Accounts of Approved Sellers shall be included in the Availability Certificate and used to calculate the Availability under the Facility.  As used herein,
“Availability” shall mean an amount equal to the Bank Advance Rate multiplied by the aggregate Factor Advances (as defined below).  As used herein, “Factor
Advance” means that amount advanced by Factor to an Approved Seller, which amount is calculated by multiplying the Factor Advance Rate by the face value of the
Approved Seller’s Invoices purchased by Factor provided, however, that the principal balance of such advances shall not at any time exceed ninety percent (90%) of the
face value of such Approved Seller’s Invoices purchased by Factor for Availability purposes.  By way of example only, if the Factor Advance Rate is 85%, and the Bank
Advance Rate is 80%, and Factor advances against an Approved Seller’s Invoices of $1,000, Factor may not list on the Availability Certificate more than $850 (85% of
Invoice) for such Invoice, and if Factor advances 85% against such Invoice, Bank will advance no more than $680 (80% of $850) to Factor.

6.2 Availability Certificate Submission.  Factor hereby agrees to execute and deliver to Bank at the time of each request for an Advance, and in any event not less often
than once every calendar month by the last business day of each such calendar month, a current Availability Certificate in a form acceptable to Bank. Unless otherwise
directed by Bank, the Availability Certificate shall be in the form attached hereto as Schedule B.  Factor acknowledges and agrees that Factor’s failure to timely execute
and deliver any one or more Availability Certificates to Bank shall constitute a material breach of and Event of Default under this Agreement, and may materially affect
or limit Factor’s Availability under the Facility.

6.3 Assignment of Interests.  Factor collaterally assigns to Bank all of its right, title and interest to all Eligible Accounts from an Approved Seller included on the
Availability Certificate, together with all of Factor’s interests, rights, security interests in, under, to, or arising in connection with Collateral, including, without limitation:
(i) the Invoices relating to such Eligible Accounts (ii) any personal guarantees of an Approved Seller’s obligations under the Receivable Financing Agreements with
respect to such Eligible Accounts; and (iii) all of its now or hereafter existing general security interests in the Approved Sellers’ assets; and (iv) all Collateral.  Upon
Bank’s advance of funds to Factor under the Facility, Bank’s security interest in all of the foregoing shall attach without further action on the part of Factor and Bank, and
Factor expressly authorizes Bank to execute all documents evidencing the transfer of such rights, title and interests.
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6.4 Advance Frequency.  Funds will be advanced by Bank as Advances based upon the Availability Certificate (as approved by Bank) submitted in connection with the
Advance request, which may be on a daily basis.  In the event that Availability Certificates and all required documentation are delivered to the Bank prior to 9:00 a.m.
MST on a business day, the Bank will make funds available to the Factor by 12:00  p.m. MST.

7.  Lockbox and Payment Distributions.  Factor shall, pursuant to a lockbox or depository account agreement approved in writing by Bank establish a depository
lockbox account with the Lockbox Bank which lockbox account shall be maintained separate from all other lockbox and depository accounts of Factor.  Sellers and
Account Debtors shall be directed to make all payments due on the Eligible Accounts into the lockbox account.  Factor shall pay all costs associated with the lockbox
account.  Any and all payments received directly by Factor on Eligible Accounts (and any other Accounts upon which Bank has made Advances) shall immediately be
forwarded by Factor to said lockbox account.  Bank shall be given sole access to all funds in the lockbox account, and, subject to the terms of this Agreement, Bank shall
allocate, pay and distribute such funds as follows: first, to the payment of any unpaid Fees; second, to the payment of any outstanding Interest; third, to the payment of
unpaid Advance principal; and fourth, the payment of any surplus to Factor.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, or upon breach by Factor, any and all
payments received in the lockbox account will be paid to Bank, until such time as all Obligations have been paid in full; provided, however, that absent a current or
ongoing Event of Default by Factor, remittances received in connection with Sellers other than Approved Sellers shall be released to Factor to be remitted to such Sellers.

8. Guarantors.  Those Persons identified on Schedule A as Guarantors shall each provide personal and/or corporate guarantees, as applicable, of the performance and
payment of all Obligations of Factor, and shall respectively each enter into a Guaranty Agreement, the terms and conditions of which shall be agreeable to Bank in its
sole discretion.

9. Representations and Warranties.  To induce Bank to enter into this Agreement and to make Facility Advances hereunder, Factor makes the following representations
and warranties, each of which is acknowledged by Factor to be a material representation and warranty, and each of which shall be deemed to be renewed by Factor upon
each request by Factor for a Facility Advance.

9.1 General and Corporate Matters.

(a)  Factor has and shall maintain full power and authority to own its assets, and to conduct the business in which it engages, and to enter into and perform its
Obligations.

(b)  The complete and exact name of Factor is the name set forth directly above the signature line of Factor in this Agreement. During the five (5) years preceding the
date of this Agreement:  (i) Factor has not been known by or used any legal, fictitious or trade name; (ii) Factor has not changed its name in any respect; (iii) Factor has
not been the surviving entity of a merger or consolidation; and (iv) Factor has not acquired all or substantially all of the assets of any person or entity.

(c)  Factor is duly organized or incorporated, as applicable, and is in good standing under the laws of the state of its organization or incorporation, and Factor is duly
qualified to do business in and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the conduct of its business requires such qualification.

(d)  Factor has all necessary licenses and other certificates or permits required for the conduct of its business and all such licenses, certificates and or permits are, and
shall at all times herein remain current.

(e)  The execution, delivery and performance by Factor of this Agreement: (i) has been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of Factor; (ii) is not
inconsistent with any Articles of Incorporation, Articles of Organization, By-Laws, Partnership Agreement, or other organizational documents of Factor; (iii) do not and
will not contravene any provision of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, contract or other instrument to which Factor is a party or by which it is
bound; and (iv) will constitute a legal, valid and binding agreement and obligation of Factor, fully enforceable in accordance with its terms.

(f)  There are no pending or threatened actions or proceedings against or affecting Factor before any court, governmental agency or arbitrator, which may, in any one case
or in the aggregate which would constitute a Materially Adverse Effect.

(g)   Factor has satisfied all judgments, and is not in default with respect to any judgment, writ, injunction, state decree, rule or regulation of any court, arbitrator or
federal, municipal, or other governmental authority, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality.  Factor is not in material default under the terms of any
agreements with third parties.

(h)  Factor has and does conduct its business in a lawful manner and in full and complete compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, and orders, including, without limitation, environmental health and labor rules and regulations, and shall pay when due all lawfully imposed taxes upon or in
connection with its property, business, income and employees.

(i)  The place of business of Factor (or if Factor has more than one place of business, then the location of its chief executive office) is the location set forth in Schedule A
of this Agreement.

(j)  This Agreement, the financial statements referred to herein, and all other statements and information furnished by Factor to Bank in connection herewith contain no
untrue statement of a material fact and omit no material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein or herein not misleading.  Factor represents and warrants
that it has not failed to disclose in writing to Bank any fact that materially and adversely affects, or is reasonably likely to result in a Material Adverse Effect.
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      (k)    Factor agrees that for so long as Factor or any Guarantor shall have any Obligation to Bank under the Agreement or any Guaranty, whether before or after the
termination or expiration thereof, Factor shall: (i) only permit dividends, bonuses, other profit distributions or loans to its members, employees and other third parties if
Factor’s net income for the current fiscal year is positive, and such amount is collectively less than twenty five percent (25%) of Factor’s then current net profits for the
fiscal year; and (ii) only permit wages, salaries and other employee, officer or director compensation (exclusive of the bonuses addressed in the immediately preceding
Section (ii)) to be increased if such increases do not cause or result in Factor having a negative net income for the current fiscal year, and such increases are not more than
twenty five percent (25%) per fiscal year.

9.2 Collateral Matters.  Factor represents, warrants, and covenants concerning the Collateral as follows:

(a)  Factor is the sole and absolute owner of each Account and has full legal right to make said sale, assignment and transfer thereof;

(b)  To the best of Factor’s knowledge, the correct face amount of each Account is set forth on the Account’s Invoice and is not in dispute.

(c)  The payment of each Account is not contingent upon the fulfillment of any obligation or contract, past or future, and to the best of Factor’s knowledge, all obligations
required of the Seller have been fulfilled as of the date of the Invoice;

(d)  Each Account set forth is based on an actual sale and delivery of goods and/or services actually rendered, is presently due and owing to the Seller, is not past due or
in default, has not been previously sold, assigned, transferred, or pledged (except to Factor or the Bank), and is free of any encumbrance or lien, except as the result of
Factor’s sale of such Account to Bank;

(e)  To the best of Factor’s knowledge, there are no defenses, offsets, or counterclaims against any of the Accounts, and no agreement has been made under which the
Account Debtor may claim any deduction or discount, except as otherwise stated in any of the Invoices;

(f)  Upon the sale of each Account by Factor to Bank, Bank shall be the sole and absolute owner of each Account;

(g)  To the best of Factor’s knowledge, each Account Debtor and Seller are not insolvent as that term is defined by the Federal Bankruptcy Act;

(h) At the time of Purchase by Factor, each Account Debtor has not objected to the payment for, or the quality or the quantity of the subject matter of the Invoice, and is
liable for the amount set forth on the Invoice;

(i)  Each Account Debtor has been notified that the Account has been transferred to and is payable to Factor or Bank;

(j)  To the best of Factor’s knowledge, each Account shall be paid only to the lockbox account controlled by the Lockbox Bank;

(k)  Each Account has been and shall be purchased from the Seller by Factor pursuant to the terms of a Receivable Financing Agreement, and is and shall be subject to a
security interest in favor of Factor;

(l)  Each Account has been verified by Factor in accordance with agreed written instructions with respect to each Seller and/or Account Debtor;

(m)  To the best of Factor’s knowledge, each Account is an Eligible Account;

(n)  The Seller of each Account is not in default under the terms of their respective Receivable Financing Agreement with Factor.
 
(o)  Factor is not aware of any facts, events or circumstances which evidence or would cause a reasonable person to believe that the Collateral has been compromised in
any material manner, or that such Collateral may not be available in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreements for satisfaction of Account Debtor’s obligations
on the Accounts.

(p)  The Accounts are not subject to any security interest, lien, assignment, or other encumbrance of any nature whatsoever except for current taxes and assessments
which are not delinquent, the security interests created by this Agreement and/or any Receivable Financing Agreement, and any assignments and security interests
created and disclosed in writing to Bank prior to any Advance on such Accounts.

(q)  Bank is authorized to file UCC Financing Statements concerning the Collateral, which may include a description of “all assets” of Factor.

9.3 Financial Matters.

(a)  Factor is solvent and able to pay its debts as they mature.

(b)  All financial statements and information relating to Factor and/or each of its parent, subsidiaries, and Affiliates, and Guarantors, which have been or will be furnished
by Factor to Bank are, and will be true and correct, and fully and fairly represent the financial condition of Factor and such Guarantors as of the date thereof and the
results of operations for the period or periods covered thereby, and have been and will be prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards consistently applied, and
there has been no material adverse change in the condition, financial or otherwise, of Factor its parent, subsidiaries or Affiliates, or of Guarantors, since such submission,
except as has been disclosed in a writing from Factor or Guarantor to Bank.
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10.  Factor’s Covenants.   To induce Bank to enter into this Agreement and to make Advances hereunder, Factor makes the following covenants in favor of Bank, each
of which is acknowledged by Factor to be material, and each of which shall continue for so long as this Agreement is in effect, or for so long as Factor is indebted to
Bank for any Obligations, whichever is longer.

10.1 Use of Proceeds.   Factor will use the proceeds of the Facility solely for Factor’s general working capital purposes.  Factor shall not, directly or indirectly, use any
of the proceeds of the Facility for the purpose of purchasing or carrying any margin stock within the meaning of Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System, or to extend credit to any person or entity for the purpose of purchasing or carrying any such margin stock or for any purpose which violates, or is
inconsistent with, Regulation X of said Board of Governors, or for any other purpose prohibited by Section 7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or by
any of the rules and regulations respecting the extension of credit promulgated thereunder. Facility proceeds shall not be conveyed or transferred to, or used for the direct
or indirect benefit of, any subsidiary, Affiliate or parent entity of Factor, except as may occur indirectly through Factor’s permitted use of proceeds for its own general
working capital purposes.

10.2 Compliance with USA Patriot Act.   Factor will: (a) not be or become subject at any time to any statute, rule, law, regulation, ordinance, order, restriction, or list of
any government agency (including, without limitation, the U.S. Office of Foreign Asset Control list) that prohibits or limits Bank from making any advance or extension
of credit to Factor or from otherwise conducting business with Factor; and (b) provide documentary and other evidence of Factor’s identity as may be requested by Bank
at any time to enable Bank to verify Factor’s identity or to comply with any applicable law or regulation, including, without limitation, Section 326 of the USA Patriot
Act of 2001, 31 U.S.C. Section 5318.

10.3 Continued Business and Compliance with Applicable Law.   Factor will: (i) conduct its business in a lawful manner and in material compliance with all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders; (ii) maintain all licenses, permits, franchises, patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade
names, or rights thereto, necessary or advisable to conduct its business, and shall not violate any valid rights of others with respect to any of the foregoing; and (iii)
engage in a business of the same general type as now conducted, and shall not engage in any business not authorized by and not in accordance with its Organizational
Documents and other governing documents, nor make any material changes in the scope or nature of Factor’s business activities.

10.4 Prior Consent for Amendment or Change.   Factor will not modify, amend, waive, or otherwise alter, or fail to enforce, its Organizational Documents or other
governing documents without Bank's prior written consent.

10.5  Tax Filings; Payment of Taxes and Obligations.   Factor will: (i) timely file all tax returns (federal, state, and local) required to be filed; (ii) pay when due all
withholding taxes, payroll taxes, employee taxes, income taxes, and all other taxes, assessments, governmental charges and levies of every kind whatsoever (including
without limitation, all interest and penalties pertaining thereto), incurred or assessed in regards to Factor's assets, business, employees and income; and (iii) pay when due
all other obligations liabilities and trade accounts, of whatever nature or source, in accordance with regular terms except in each case, such as are not yet due, or as are
being contested in good faith by proper proceedings and as to which adequate reserves are maintained.

10.6  Financial Statements and Reports. Factor will provide Bank with such financial statements and reports as Bank may reasonably request from time to time.  All
financial statements and reports will be prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards, and shall be consistent with other financial statements previously delivered to
Bank.  All financial statements and reports will be in a form acceptable to Bank. Unless otherwise directed by Bank, Factor will provide the following financial
statements and reports to Bank:

(i)  As soon as available and in any event within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year of Factor, one (1) copy of the annual balance sheet, statements of
income and retained earnings or personal financial statements, as applicable, of Factor  and all Guarantor as of and for the year then ended, all in complete detail,
including a statement of contingent liabilities, and stating in comparative form the figures for the corresponding date and period in the previous fiscal year plus a
statement of cash flows, compiled in accordance with Accounting Standards and otherwise in a form acceptable to Bank.

(ii)   As soon as available and in any event within twenty (20) days after the end of each calendar month, one (1) copy of the balance sheet, statements of income and
retained earnings or personal financial statements, as applicable, of Factor (and  Guarantors when requested by Bank) as of and for the calendar month then ended, all in
complete detail, including a statement of contingent liabilities, and stating in comparative form the figures for the previous month, plus a statement of cash flows,
compiled in accordance with Accounting Standards and otherwise in a form acceptable to Bank.

(iii)  As soon as available and in any event within ninety (90) days after fiscal year end, the Federal Tax Returns (including, without limitation, all Schedules thereto) for
Factor and each Guarantor, respectively, to the extent not under extension;

(iv)   At the time of any request for an Advance, and at such other frequency as Bank may request from time to time, and in any event not less frequently than once a
month (to be provided by the last business day of each calendar month), and in a form provided by or acceptable to Bank, an Availability Certificate demonstrating that
the outstanding balance on the Facility is in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Unless otherwise directed by Bank, the Availability Certificate
shall be in the form attached hereto as Schedule B.
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(v)   Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each calendar year and one hundred twenty (120) days after each June 30, in a form provided by or acceptable
to Bank, a Compliance Certificate signed by chief financial officer or chief executive officer of Factor certifying and demonstrating that (i) the Factor is in compliance
with all financial covenants of this Agreement; (ii) all financial statements or reports provided to Bank fully and fairly represent Factor’s financial condition as of the date
thereof and the results of Factor’s operations for the period or periods covered thereby; and (ii) no Event of Default or event which, with the passage of time or the giving
of notice or both, would constitute an Event of Default, has occurred and that there has been no material, adverse change in the financial or other condition of Factor
since the date of this Agreement.

(vi)  Within fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month, and/or at such other frequency as Bank may request from time to time, in a form acceptable to Bank a
complete and accurate Accounts receivable aging report for all Accounts subject to the Facility, which minimally set forth the following:  identification of all Accounts
subject to the Facility: the face value of the Accounts (or an agreed value, if such value varies from the face value of an Invoice); the balance due on each Account; the
amount of Factor Advances on each such Account; the amount of Bank’s Advances on each Account; the total receivables balance; current receivables due; receivables
thirty (30) to sixty (60) days old;  and receivables sixty (60) to ninety (90) days old.

(vii)  Within fifteen (15)  days after the end of each calendar month, and/or at such other frequency as Bank may request from time to time, in a form acceptable to Bank
a complete and accurate accounts payable aging report for all Factor’s accounts payable, which minimally set forth the following:  identification of all accounts payable;
the balance due on each account payable; the total account payables balance; current payables; payables thirty (30) to sixty (60) days old;  and payables sixty (60) to
ninety (90) days old.

(viii)   In the event the Collateral includes Inventory, then within fifteen (15) days of the end of each calendar month, and/or at such other frequency as Bank may request
from time to time, in a form provided by or acceptable to Bank, a monthly report of all Inventory on hand.

(ix)   Within twenty (20) days of the end of each calendar quarter, Factor shall submit to Bank a list of the names, addresses and phone numbers of all Account Debtors
on Factor’s Accounts.  After the occurrence of an Event of Default, Factor hereby authorizes Bank to verify Factor’s Accounts through written or verbal verification
methods with the Account Debtors of such Accounts or other third parties at the discretion of Bank.

(x)  No later than the tenth (10th) day of each calendar month, Factor will certify in writing to Bank, in a form acceptable to Bank, that all federal, state, and other taxes
and assessments owing during the prior month have been paid in full.  Such certification will be accompanied by proof of payment in a form acceptable to Bank.

           (xi) Factor shall maintain and provide to Bank a detailed, rolling twelve (12) month financial forecast on a quarterly basis, no more than 25 calendar days after
calendar quarter.

     10.7 Insurance. Factor will maintain insurance with financially sound and reputable insurance companies or associations (as reasonably approved by Bank) in such
amounts and covering such risks as are usually carried by companies engaged in the same or a substantially similar business and reasonably similarly situated; provided,
however, that the Factor is not required to maintain credit insurance.

10.8 Maintenance of Records and Properties.   Factor will keep accurate records and books of account in which complete entries will be made in accordance with
Accounting Standards, and all such records of Factor will be kept and stored in the business location of Factor set forth in Schedule A of this Agreement, and will not be
moved therefrom without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Bank.  Factor shall maintain, keep and preserve all of its properties (tangible and intangible)
necessary or useful in the proper conduct of its business in good working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted.

     10.9 Notice of Claims.  Factor will promptly notify Bank in writing of all actions, suits or proceedings filed or threatened against or affecting Factor in any court or
before any governmental commission, board, or authority which, if adversely determined: (i) may result in a judgment, adverse determination, or other detriment against
Factor in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) which is not covered entirely by insurance, or (ii) may have a Material Adverse Effect.

     10.10 Financial Covenants.  Except as otherwise expressly defined herein, each of the accounting terms used in this Section 10.10 shall have meanings consistent
with Accounting Standards.  Factor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

(a)   Tangible Net Worth.  Factor will maintain at all times a tangible net worth of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00.00).  For purposes of this
Agreement, “Tangible Net Worth” means the excess of total assets over total liabilities, excluding, however, from the determination of total assets any related party notes
or loans receivable, investments in related parties and all assets which would be classified as intangible assets under Accounting Standards, including, without limitation,
goodwill, licenses, patents, trademarks, tradenames, copyrights, and franchises, and also excluding from liabilities any Subordinate Debt.

(b)    Debt to Tangible Net Worth.  Factor will maintain at all times a ratio of Debt to Tangible Net Worth not in excess of four to one (4:1). For purposes of this
Agreement, “Debt to Tangible Net Worth” means Factor’s total liabilities (including, without limitation, capital leases and Letters of Credit), less Subordinate Debt,
divided by Tangible Net Worth.

     10.11 Negative Pledge.   Factor will not create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, lien, security interest, hypothecation, assignment,
deposit arrangement, or other preferential arrangement, charge, or encumbrance (including, without limitation, any conditional sale, other title retention agreement, or
finance lease) of any nature, upon or with respect to any Collateral, now owned or hereafter acquired, or sign or file, under the Uniform Commercial Code of any
jurisdiction, a financing statement under which Factor appears as debtor with regard to any such Collateral, or sign any security agreement authorizing any secured party
thereunder to file such financing statement with regard to such Collateral, except: (a) those expressly permitted by this Agreement; (b) liens arising in the ordinary course
of business (such as liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics, and materialmen) and other similar liens imposed by law for sums not yet due and payable or, if due and
payable, those being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which appropriate reserves are maintained in accordance with Accounting Standards and
for which appropriate bonding has been obtained if requested by Bank; (c) liens for taxes and assessments not yet due and payable or, if due and payable, those being
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which appropriate reserves are maintained in accordance with Accounting Standards and for which bonding
has been obtained, if requested by Bank; and (d) those specifically approved in writing by Bank.
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     10.12 Mergers, Consolidations, and Purchase and Sale of Assets.  Factor will not wind up, liquidate, or dissolve itself, reorganize, merge, or consolidate with or
into, or convey, sell, assign, transfer, lease, or otherwise dispose of (whether in one transaction or a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether
now owned or hereafter acquired) to any person or entity, or acquire all or substantially all of the assets or the business of any person or entity, without the prior written
consent of Bank, which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

10.13 Business Name.  Factor will conduct business only under the name set forth above Factor’s execution of this Agreement.

10.14 Changes in Collateral.  Factor will provide Bank with prompt written notice of any change in the condition and quality of the Collateral, except those changes
arising in the ordinary course of business.  Factor will promptly notify Bank in writing upon any Collateral ceasing to be or being determined to have been incorrectly
identified as an Eligible Account or eligible Collateral.

10.15 Environmental.  Except in strict compliance with local, state and federal law, generate, manufacture or dispose of any Hazardous Materials on or under Factor’s
property, Factor will not store or permit to be used any Hazardous Materials on Factor’s property, or acquire, incur or assume directly or indirectly, any material
contingent liability in connection with the release of any Hazardous Materials or substance into the environment or dispose of, or allow to be disposed of, or otherwise
release Hazardous Materials or solvent wastes on or into the property of Factor which disposal results in a Material Adverse Effect to the business, prospects, profits,
properties or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Factor; provided, that the Factor’s handling of fuel and other products in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations is not restricted by this Agreement.

10.16 Security Interest Transfer and Perfection Cooperation.   Factor will execute any notices of assignment and other documents reasonably requested by Bank for
perfection or enforcement of the rights and interests of Bank, and will give good faith, diligent cooperation to Bank, and will perform such other acts reasonably
requested by Bank for the perfection and enforcement of the rights and interests of Bank, and agrees that Bank is authorized to file, record, or otherwise utilize such
documents as it deems necessary to perfect and/or enforce any security interest or lien granted hereunder.

11.  Electronic Files.   Factor shall ensure that each electronic file submitted or made available to Bank by Factor pursuant to this Agreement, shall contain all necessary
fields of information as reasonably required by Bank and shall be in a form and format reasonably acceptable to Bank.  At no time shall Bank be liable or responsible to
Factor for any reduction to the Availability or for any other actions taken by Bank as a result of all or any portion of the information set forth in the electronic file, either
directly or indirectly, containing file transfer errors, content errors, format errors or any other errors or inaccuracies or being subject in whole or in part to transmission
errors or failures.  Factor expressly understands that it is the sole responsibility of Factor to ensure the accuracy and successful transmission of any and all information
and documentation to Bank.

12.  Audits; Examinations; Access.  As long as Bank remains unpaid on any Obligations, upon reasonable prior notice and during normal business hours, Factor will
provide to Bank, its attorneys, accountants or other authorized representatives, unrestricted access to examine and make copies and extracts of any and all information,
data, reports, analyses, compilations, studies, interpretations, and other materials, regardless of the form maintained whether documentary, computerized, electronic, oral
or otherwise, concerning the subject matter of this Agreement, the Approved Sellers, Accounts, Account Debtors, Facility and Obligations, and to discuss the business,
affairs, finances, insurance, Accounts and Obligations with any of Factor's officers and directors and with Factor's independent accountants.  Bank may from time to time
perform audits and field exams of Factor’s operations, and may employ third parties to conduct said audits or exams.  Prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default, the
Factor shall not be responsible for reimbursement of more than two (2) audits in any year, and the cost of each audit shall not be more than $4,000.00, including all out-
of-pocket expenses.  Factor shall immediately reimburse Bank for all inspection and audit costs incurred by Bank.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Bank
may contact Sellers and Account Debtors to investigate the status of an Invoice or payments.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Factor will grant Bank with
unrestricted access to any and all computer systems (proprietary or otherwise), equipment tracking systems, document scanning or other imaging systems, dispatch
systems, financial transaction systems or any other software or manual system used directly or indirectly by Factor in the normal course and scope of operating its
business, and to provide Bank with any and all resources necessary to enable Bank to electronically effectuate or establish the herein described access, all for the purpose
of permitting Bank to protect its interest in the Collateral.

13.  Grant of Security Interest.  Factor hereby grants to Bank a present and continuing security interest in all Collateral.  Factor and Bank acknowledge their mutual
intent that all security interests contemplated herein are given as a contemporaneous exchange for new value to Factor, regardless of when Advances to Factor are
actually made or when Collateral is actually acquired.  The Collateral shall secure all of Factor’s present and future debts, Obligations, and liabilities of whatever nature
to Bank, including without limitation, (a) all Obligations of Factor arising under this Agreement, any document contemplated hereby, or otherwise arising from or
relating to the transactions referenced herein, including without limitation, future indebtedness, collection costs and attorneys’ fees; (b) transactions in which the
documents evidencing the obligation or indebtedness refer to this grant of security interest as providing security therefor.  Factor’s Obligations may also be secured by
other Collateral as may be evidenced from time to time by other documentation apart from this Agreement.
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14.  Right to Perform.  Bank may, in its sole reasonable discretion, elect to discharge any security interest, lien or other encumbrance upon any Accounts or Collateral,
elect to pay any subcontractor, vendor, materialman, laborer, or other person to whom a Seller or Factor is obligated, whether or not any mechanic's lien or other
encumbrance has been asserted, and elect to pay any insurance charges payable by Factor, or provide insurance as required herein if Factor fails to do so.  Any such
payments and all expenses incurred in connection therewith shall be immediately due and payable by Factor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing rights, Bank shall have no
obligation to discharge any such security interest, lien or other encumbrance, pay such insurance charges, or provide such insurance.

15.  Power of Attorney to Endorse Checks.  Factor does hereby make, constitute and appoint Bank, and its designees, as its true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, with full
power of substitution, with full power to endorse the name of Factor upon any checks or other forms of payment made on Accounts and to effect the deposit and
collection thereof.  This power of attorney is irrevocable and coupled with an interest.  Such power may be exercised at any time.  This power of attorney is irrevocable
and coupled with an interest.  Exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be in the sole reasonable discretion of Bank without any duty to do so.

16.  Disclosure of Information.  Factor hereby consents to Bank disclosing to any investor providing financing for Bank or participating in this financing, any and all
information, knowledge, reports and records, including, without limitation, financial statements, concerning Factor or any Guarantor.  Bank will inform Factor of any
potential information disclosure prior to its occurrence and Factor may object to such disclosure on the basis of the potential disclosed party. Bank will not disclose any
other information regarding Factor, Guarantor, Sellers or Account Debtors without the Factor’s prior written consent, provided however, the foregoing obligation of
nondisclosure shall not include any information which:  (a) the Bank, its agents or representatives  independently developed outside the scope of this Agreement, wholly
independent of any use, benefit or knowledge of the information provided by Factor;  (b) Bank knew or had in its possession, prior to disclosure, without limitation on its
confidentiality, and can reasonably document such prior knowledge or possession;  (c) was or is in the public domain as a matter of law; (d) is disclosed by a third party
not under an obligation of confidentiality; or (e) is released from confidentiality with the written consent of Factor.  The Bank agrees that it will not contact any Sellers
for the purposes of soliciting their business or otherwise provide or attempt to provide factoring or any financing to any of the Sellers during the term of this Agreement
and for two (2) years after the termination of this Agreement.

17.  Release, Waiver and Indemnification.  FACTOR RELEASES AND WAIVES ANY AND ALL CLAIMS WHICH MAY BE ASSERTED, AND AGREES TO
INDEMNIFY BANK FOR ALL LIABILITIES AND DAMAGES WHICH MAY BE AWARDED AGAINST BANK, AND FOR ALL REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’
FEES, LEGAL EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES INCURRED IN DEFENDING SUCH CLAIMS, ARISING FROM OR RELATING IN ANY MANNER TO
THE FINANCING AND/OR COLLECTION OF ACCOUNTS PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, EXCLUDING CLAIMS BASED ON THE
GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF BANK.  BANK SHALL HAVE SOLE AND COMPLETE CONTROL OF THE DEFENSE OF ANY
SUCH CLAIMS, AND IS HEREBY GIVEN AUTHORITY TO SETTLE OR OTHERWISE COMPROMISE ANY SUCH CLAIMS AS BANK, ACTING IN GOOD
FAITH DETERMINES SHALL BE IN ITS BEST INTERESTS.

18.  Reserved

19.  Default.  

19.1 Events of Default.  The following events shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder:

(a)  Factor defaults in the payment of any Obligations owed to Bank, or in the performance of any provision hereof or of any other agreement now or hereafter entered
into with Bank;

(b)  Any warranty or representation of Factor herein contained proves to be false in any material way;

(c)  Any default or event which, with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a default, occurs on any indebtedness of Factor or any
Guarantor.

(d)  Factor breaches the terms of any Receivable Financing Agreement with a Seller which is not timely cured or waived.

(e) Factor or any Guarantor becomes dissolved or terminated, dies, or experiences a business failure; provided, however the death of a Guarantor shall not be a default
hereunder if the Factor is able to provide a substitute guarantor acceptable to the Bank within thirty (30) days of the day of such death.

(f)  Factor or any Guarantor becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they mature, or a receiver, trustee, or custodian is appointed for any part of Factor’s or any
Guarantor's property, or any part of Factor’s or any Guarantor's property is assigned for the benefit of creditors; provided, however that the Factor shall have thirty (30)
days to have any involuntary proceeding dismissed.

(g) Factor or any Guarantor hereunder becomes subject to any debtor-relief proceedings, including without limitation, any proceeding is commenced or petition filed
under any bankruptcy or insolvency law by or against Factor or any Guarantor; provided, however that the Factor shall have thirty (30) days to have any involuntary
proceeding dismissed.

(h)  Any judgment is entered against Factor or any Guarantor which may have a Material Adverse Effect.
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(i)  Any Guarantor fails to perform or observe any of such Guarantor’s obligations to Bank or shall notify Bank of its intention to rescind, modify, terminate or revoke
any guaranty of Factor’s Obligations to Bank, or any such guaranty shall cease to be in full force and effect for any reason whatever, provided, however that  if the Factor
is able to provide a substitute guarantor acceptable to the Bank prior to the effective date of such rescission, modification, termination or revocation, then it shall not be a
default.

(j)  Any other action or omission by Factor or any Guarantor designated under this Agreement to constitute an Event of Default.

19.2 Cure Periods.   For any Event of Default other than an Event of Default arising from the failure of Factor to make a payment to Bank when due, Factor may cure
such default within fifteen (15) Business Days of the receipt of written notice from Bank of such default (“Default Notice”), or if it is commercially unreasonable to cure
such default within such fifteen (15) Business Days, then, with Bank's consent, within such longer period of time as the parties may mutually agree is reasonably
necessary to accomplish the cure, provided that: (i) Factor promptly commences such cure upon receipt of the Default Notice; and (ii) such cure period does not exceed
sixty (60) days under any circumstances; and (iii) Factor shall pay to Bank all of Bank’s reasonable costs to confirm and ensure that the default has been cured.  If an
Event of Default is cured to the satisfaction of Bank, provided Factor immediately pays all of Bank’s reasonable damages to date and enforcement costs, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, through the date Bank received notice of the cure, Bank shall cease its enforcement actions and remedies, including any acceleration remedy
provided in this Agreement, and the parties shall proceed under this Agreement as if no default has occurred. Notwithstanding Bank’s obligation to terminate its remedies
upon a satisfactory and timely cure as set forth above, Bank shall have no obligation to suspend or delay its enforcement of its rights and remedies under this Agreement
and at law during any applicable cure period.  In no event shall Factor have the right to cure an more than three (3) Events of Default during the term of this
Agreement.  If Bank deems itself to be insecure under the terms of this Agreement, Bank may require Factor to post a bond in an amount not less than One Hundred
Twenty Five Percent (125%) the amount alleged to be due and owing.

     19.3 No Waiver of Event of Default.   No course of dealing or delay or failure to assert any Event of Default shall constitute a waiver of that Event of Default or of
any prior or subsequent Event of Default.

19.4 Waiver of Notice of Acceleration.  Factor waives any requirement that Bank inform Factor by affirmative act, notice or otherwise of any acceleration of Factor’s
Obligations.  Further, Bank’ failure to charge or accrue Fees or Interest at the Default Rate shall not in any manner be deemed a waiver by Bank of its claim thereto.

20.  Remedies.

20.1 Remedies upon Event of Default.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, and upon failure of Factor to timely cure the same where permitted, and at all times
thereafter, Bank shall have the following remedies:

(a) all or any portion of the Obligations due or to become due from Factor to Bank, at the option of Bank and without notice to Factor of the exercise of such option, shall
accelerate and become at once due and payable in full;

(b)  Bank shall have the right, immediately and without prior notice or demand, to set off against Factor’s Obligations, whether or not due, all money and other amounts
owed by Bank in any capacity to Factor, including, without limitation, against any Accounts, and Bank shall be deemed to have exercised such right of setoff and to have
made a charge against any such money, amounts or accounts immediately upon occurrence of such Event of Default and failure to timely cure where permitted, even
though such charge is entered on Bank’s books subsequently thereto;

(c) Bank may terminate this Agreement and any other related documents or agreements relating thereto;

(d)  Bank shall have all rights and remedies created by or arising from this Agreement or other agreements between Factor and Bank, including, without limitation,
exercising all rights with respect to the Collateral;

(e)  Bank shall have all the rights and remedies available under the UCC, and Factor agrees to sign such financing statements, in a form satisfactory to Bank, which Bank
may at any time desire to file in order to perfect Bank’ security interest granted herein.

(f)  Bank shall have all the rights and remedies available to Factor under any Receivable Financing Agreement Factor has with any Seller whose Account is subject to the
Facility, and under any security agreement in favor of Factor or Bank relating thereto.

(g)  Bank may institute an action in Factor’s name in order to collect on an Account or on the Seller’s and/or the Seller’s guarantors’ other assets, or, in the event that the
law does not permit Bank to institute an action in Factor’s name in order to collect on an Account or on a Seller’s other assets, upon Bank’s request, Factor shall institute
an action in its own name in order to collect on such Account and/or on a Seller’s other assets.  In either event, Factor shall pay all costs incurred in recovering such
assets.

(h)  In the event that in any action Factor combines a claim for its own Accounts along with that of Bank for Accounts which were purchased or advanced against by
Bank, Factor agrees that any proceeds recovered therefrom shall be paid first to Bank until such time as all Obligations have been paid in full.

(i)  Bank may enter upon any premises where the Collateral or records pertaining thereto may be and take possession of the Collateral and records relating thereto.  Upon
request of Bank, Factor shall, at Factor’s expense, assemble the Collateral and records relating thereto at a place designated by Bank and tender the Collateral and records
to Bank.

(j)  Bank may sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any or all of the Collateral and, after deducting the reasonable costs and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Bank,
including, without limitation, (i) reasonable attorneys’ fees and legal expenses, (ii) transportation and storage costs, (iii) costs of advertising and sale of the Collateral,
(iv) sale commissions, (v) sales tax, (vi) costs for improving or repairing the Collateral, and (vii) costs of Collateral preservation and protection, and apply the remainder
against, or to hold as a reserve against, the Obligations of Factor.
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(k)  Bank may notify any Seller or Account Debtor obligated with respect to any Invoice that the underlying account has been assigned to Bank by Factor and/or Seller
and that payment thereof is to be made to the order of and directly and solely to Bank;

(l)  Bank may debit any Factor Deposit Account; and

(m) Bank may receive, take, endorse, assign, deliver, accept and deposit in the name of Factor and/or in the name of any Seller to the fullest extent authorized under the
Receivable Financing Agreement, any and all cash, checks, commercial paper, drafts, remittances and other instruments and documents relating to the Collateral or the
proceeds thereof;

(n) Bank may change the address for delivery of mail to Factor and receive and open mail addressed to Factor;

(o) Bank may extend the time of payment of, compromise or settle for cash, credit return of merchandise, and upon any terms or conditions, any and all Accounts or
other Collateral which includes a monetary obligation and discharge or release of any Seller, Account Debtor or other obligor (including filing of any public record
releasing any lien granted to Factor by such Seller, Account Debtor or other obligor), without affecting any of Factor’s obligations hereunder;

(p) Bank shall have all other rights and remedies existing at law, in equity, or by statute.

20.2 Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies herein conferred are cumulative and not exclusive of any other rights or remedies, and shall be in
addition to every other right, power, and remedy that Bank may have, whether specifically granted herein or hereafter existing at law, in equity, or by statute.  Any and all
such rights and remedies may be exercised from time to time and as often and in such order as Bank may deem expedient in its sole discretion.

20.3 No Waiver of Rights.   No delay or omission in the exercise or pursuit by Bank of any right, power, or remedy shall impair any such right, power, or remedy or
shall be construed to be a waiver thereof.

20.4 Deficiencies.   Factor, and any Guarantors (subject  however, to the terms of their respective Guarantees), if any, shall be liable for all deficiencies owing on any
obligations secured by the Collateral after liquidation of the Collateral.

20.5 Default Rate.  Upon occurrence of an Event of Default, the Interest rate on all Obligations of Factor and/or Guarantor shall automatically increase to the Default
Rate until the same are paid in full.

21.  Revival Clause.  If the incurring of any debt by Factor or the payment of any money or transfer of property to Bank by or on behalf of Factor or any Guarantor
(including without limitation, the collection of any Account) should for any reason subsequently be determined to be "voidable" or "avoidable" in whole or in part within
the meaning of any state or federal law (collectively "voidable transfers"), including, without limitation, fraudulent conveyances or preferential transfers under the United
States Bankruptcy Code or any other federal or state law, and Bank is required to repay or restore any voidable transfers or the amount or any portion thereof, or upon the
advice of counsel for Bank is advised to do so, then, as to any such amount or property repaid or restored, including all reasonable costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees of
Bank related thereto, the liability of Factor and any Guarantor shall automatically be revived, reinstated and restored and shall exist as though the voidable transfers had
never been made.

22.  Bankruptcy Considerations.  Factor covenants that it will notify Bank of any voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy petition under the United States Bankruptcy
Code filed by or against Factor or any Guarantor, or against any Seller or Account Debtor in regards to any Account securing the Obligations, and of any assignment for
the benefit of creditors by Factor or any Guarantor or against any Seller or Account Debtor in regards to any Account or other Collateral securing the Obligations, within
twenty-four hours of receiving notification of any such filing or assignment.  Failure to notify Bank of any such bankruptcy filing or assignment within said twenty-four
hour period shall constitute an Event of Default.  Factor acknowledges that this Agreement is a contract to extend debt financing or financial accommodations to or for
the benefit of Factor within the meaning of 11 U.S.C. §365(c)(2) and, as such, may not be assumed or assigned.  Bank shall be under no obligation to provide any
financing under this Agreement from and after the filing of any voluntary or involuntary petition against Factor or any Guarantor.

23.  Joint and Several Liability.  Factor, and each Guarantor (subject , however, to the terms of their respective Guarantees and Warrantees) shall each be jointly and
severally liable for all Obligations and liabilities arising under this Agreement and the other agreements, documents, obligations, and transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

24.  Participation Consent; Preferential Rights.  Factor shall not enter into any participation agreement on any loan or factoring transaction with any Person other than
Bank during the term of this Agreement without Bank’s prior written approval, to be given at Bank’s commercially reasonable discretion.  Factor covenants and agrees
that in the event Factor shall desire to obtain additional financing participations that it shall first provide Bank with written notice and ten (10) days to elect to participate
with Factor, on the same terms and conditions to be offered by Factor to a third party participant.  If Bank consents to such participation by a third party, but elects not to
participate on the terms provided, and Factor later determines to change any material terms of such participation, then Factor shall again re-offer such opportunity to
Bank in same manner and time period provided above.  In the event Bank does not provide Factor with written notice of its decision with regard to Bank’s participation
or non-participation in such transaction, and/or Bank does not otherwise provide its consent to a proposed third party such participation transaction prior the expiration of
the foregoing ten (10) day notice period, Bank shall be deemed to have refused to give its consent to such third party participation and refused to participation in such
proposed participation transaction, and Factor shall not engage in any such participation transaction.
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25.  Miscellaneous Provisions.

     25.1 Factor's Obligations Cumulative.   Every Obligation, covenant, condition, provision, warranty, agreement, liability, and undertaking of Factor contained in this
Agreement shall be deemed cumulative and not in derogation or substitution of any of the other Obligations, covenants, conditions, provisions, warranties, agreements,
liabilities, or undertakings of Factor in favor of Bank, regardless of their source or origin.

     25.2 Payment of Expenses and Attorney's Fees.   Factor shall pay all reasonable expenses of Bank relating to the negotiation, drafting of documents, documentation
of the Facility, and administration and supervision of the Facility, including, without limitation, appraisal fees, environmental inspection fees, collateral audit and field
examination expenses, title insurance, recording fees, filing fees, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and legal expenses, whether incurred in creating the Facility, in future
amendments or modifications to this Agreement, or in ongoing administration and supervision of the Facility.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Factor agrees
to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and legal expenses incurred by Bank in enforcing, or exercising any rights and remedies available to
Bank. Factor agrees to pay all expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of court and all other legal expenses, incurred by Bank in any bankruptcy proceedings
of any type involving Factor, Guarantor, this Agreement, or the Collateral, including, without limitation, expenses incurred in modifying or lifting the automatic stay,
determining adequate protection, use of cash collateral or relating to any plan of reorganization.  Factor’s Obligation for payment of attorneys’ fees and/or legal costs,
wherever provided in this Agreement, shall include, without limitation, an Obligation for payment of reasonable market rate legal fees, compensation, fees, expenses and
costs of Bank’s in-house counsel. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of any litigation or arbitration, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its attorney’s
fees and expenses from the non-prevailing party.

     25.3 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall bind the parties, their successors, representatives and assigns.  This Agreement is not assignable or transferable
by Factor and any such purported assignment or transfer is void.  Factor acknowledges and agrees that Bank may assign all or any portion of this Agreement, including,
without limitation, assignment of the rights, benefits and remedies of Bank hereunder without any assignment of the duties, obligations or liabilities of Bank hereunder,
and may sell participations in this financing.  To the extent of such transfer or assignment of interest, Bank shall have no further liability hereunder with regard thereto.

25.4   Third Party Beneficiaries.   This Agreement is made for the sole and exclusive benefit of Factor, Bank and Guarantor and their successors and authorized assigns,
and is not intended to benefit any other third party.  No third party may claim any right or benefit or seek to enforce any term or provision of this Agreement.

     25.5 Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue.  The interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement, and the rights, obligations and remedies of the parties hereto,
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Utah, without regard to conflict of law principles.  Factor expressly acknowledges that by
execution and delivery of this Agreement, Factor has transacted business in the State of Utah, and Factor hereby voluntarily and irrevocably submits to, consents to, and
waives any defense to the jurisdiction of the courts located in the State of Utah as to all matters relating to or arising from this Agreement.  EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY
AGREED IN WRITING BY BANK, THE STATE AND FEDERAL COURTS LOCATED IN THE STATE OF UTAH SHALL HAVE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE
JURISDICTION OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DISPUTES, AND CONTROVERSIES ARISING UNDER OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT.  NO LAWSUIT,
PROCEEDING, ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION, OR ANY OTHER ACTION RELATING TO OR ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE
COMMENCED OR PROSECUTED IN ANY OTHER FORUM, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY AGREED IN WRITING BY BANK.

25.6 Interpretation, Severability. The titles, captions and section headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be considered part of this
Agreement nor used in its interpretation.  All references in this Agreement to the singular shall be deemed to include the plural when the context so requires, and vice
versa.  References in the collective or conjunctive shall also include the disjunctive unless the context otherwise clearly requires a different interpretation.  In the event of
an ambiguity in the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties agree that the ambiguity shall not be interpreted for or against any party upon grounds
of authorship, and each understands and agrees to be bound and abide by the terms hereof. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in
such manner as to be effective and valid to the greatest extent allowed under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement shall be prohibited by or invalid under
applicable law, said provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the
remaining provisions of this Agreement.

25.7 Survival and Binding Effect of Representations, Warranties, and Covenants. All agreements, representations, warranties and covenants made herein by Factor
shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and any bankruptcy proceedings involving Factor and/or Guarantor and shall continue in effect so long as any
Obligation of Factor to Bank is outstanding and unpaid, notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement.

     25.8 Interest on Expenses and Indemnification, Collateral, Order of Application.   All expenses, out-of-pocket costs, attorneys’ fees and legal expenses, amounts
advanced in performance of Obligations of Factor, and indemnification amounts owing by Factor to Bank under or pursuant to this Agreement, shall be due and payable
upon demand.  If not paid upon demand, all such Obligations shall bear interest at the Default Rate from the date of disbursement until paid in full to Bank, both before
and after judgment.  Bank is hereby authorized to Advance or disburse funds from the Facility for payment of all such Obligations.  Payment of all such Obligations shall
be secured by the Collateral.  All payments and recoveries shall be applied to payment of the foregoing Obligations, and all other amounts owing to Bank by Factor in
such order and priority as determined by Bank.
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25.9 Limitation of Consequential Damages.   BANK, ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, REPRESENTATIVES, AGENTS, AND ATTORNEYS, SHALL
NOT BE LIABLE TO FACTOR OR TO ANY GUARANTOR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, ARISING FROM OR
RELATING TO ANY BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHER WRONG IN CONNECTION WITH THE NEGOTIATION, DOCUMENTATION,
ADMINISTRATION OR COLLECTION OF THE FACILITY OR IN ANY MANNER RELATING TO THE THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREIN.

      25.10   Jury Trial Waiver, Exclusive Jurisdiction of Utah Courts.   IN RECOGNITION OF THE HIGHER COSTS AND DELAYS WHICH MAY RESULT
FROM A JURY TRIAL, FACTOR HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION (I)
ARISING HEREUNDER, OR (II) IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH OR RELATED OR INCIDENTAL TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE TRANSACTIONS
ARISING HEREUNDER OR RELATING HERETO, IN EACH CASE WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER ARISING, AND WHETHER GROUNDED
IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE.  FACTOR FURTHER WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO CONSOLIDATE ANY SUCH ACTION IN WHICH A JURY TRIAL
HAS BEEN WAIVED WITH ANY OTHER ACTION IN WHICH A JURY TRIAL CANNOT BE OR HAS NOT BEEN WAIVED.  FACTOR  AGREES AND
CONSENTS THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION SHALL BE DECIDED BY COURT TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY, AND
THAT BANK MAY FILE AN ORIGINAL COUNTERPART OR A COPY OF THIS SECTION WITH ANY COURT AS WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF THE CONSENT
OF FACTOR HERETO TO THE WAIVER OF RIGHTS TO TRIAL BY JURY.

     25.11 Notices.  All notices required to be given to any party other than Bank shall be deemed given upon the first to occur of:  (i) deposit thereof in a receptacle under
the control of the United States Postal Service, (ii) transmittal by electronic means, including facsimile, to a receiver under the control of such party, or (iii) actual receipt
by such party or an employee or agent of such party.  All notices required to be given to Bank hereunder shall be deemed given upon actual receipt of the notice by the
below named officer of Bank at the below stated address.  For the purposes hereof, notices hereunder shall be sent, if to Factor or Guarantors, at their respective
addresses set forth in Schedule A attached hereto.
 

BANK: TAB Bank  
Address: 1185 Harrison Blvd., Suite 200  

 Ogden, Utah  84403  
Officer: Vice President, Operations  
Fax Number: (801) 395-8647  

 
25.12 Duplicate Originals; Counterpart Execution.   Two or more duplicate originals of this Agreement may be signed by the parties, each duplicate of which shall be
an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, without the requirement that
all parties sign each counterpart.  Each of such counterparts shall be an original, but all counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

25.13 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

25.14 Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any power or right under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single
or partial exercise of such power or right preclude any further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other power or right.  No waiver by either party of any provision of
this Agreement or of any breach or default shall be effective unless in writing signed by that party.

25.15 Integrated Agreement and Subsequent Amendment.   This Agreement, the respective Receivable Financing Agreements and related security filings constitute
the entire agreement between Bank and Factor and Guarantor, and may not be altered or amended except by written agreement signed by Bank, Factor, and, if applicable,
Guarantor.  PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE SECTION 25-5-4, FACTOR AND GUARANTOR ARE NOTIFIED THAT THESE AGREEMENTS ARE A FINAL
EXPRESSION OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN BANK, FACTOR AND GUARANTOR AND THESE AGREEMENTS MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY
EVIDENCE OF ANY ALLEGED ORAL AGREEMENT.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, arrangements  and understandings between the parties hereto as to
the subject matter hereof are, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, rescinded.

25.16 Electronic Signature.   The parties agree that this Agreement may be executed or accepted using electronic, stamped, or facsimile signatures, and that such
signatures shall be legally binding to the same extent as a written signature by a party’s authorized representative.  Each party hereby waives any legal requirement that
this Agreement be embodied, stored or reproduced in tangible media, and agrees that an electronic reproduction shall be given the same force and effect as a signed
writing.

25.17 Signature Authority.   The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she has been duly authorized by all necessary or appropriate action of or by the appropriate
corporation or other applicable legal entity to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective party to form a legally binding contract, and understands that acceptance
of this Agreement constitutes an agreement to be bound to perform in strict conformity with the terms and conditions set forth herein.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties do hereby witnesseth the same as of the date first set forth above.
 
Factor:   
   
Anchor Funding Services, LLC   
    
By:    
Name: Brad M. Bernstein   
Title: President and CFO   
 
 
STATE OF   )  
   )     ss.  
COUNTY OF   )  
    

 
On this _____ day of _____________, 2011, before me, the undersigned notary, personally appeared Brad M. Bernstein, who being by me duly sworn did state,

that he/she is the President and CFO of Anchor Funding Services, LLC, the corporation/partnership/limited liability company/sole proprietorship that executed the within
instrument, and acknowledged to me that such corporation/partnership/limited liability company/sole proprietorship executed the same and that he/she was authorized to
execute said instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
 
   
    
    
  Notary Public  
    
My Commission Expires:   Residing At:  
    
    
 
 
Bank:   
   
   
TAB Bank   
    
By:    
    
Name:    
    
Title:    
    
Date:    
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SCHEDULE A
TO

REDISCOUNT CREDIT FACILITY AGREEMENT

Factor Principal Address: Address: 10801 Johnston Road, Suite 210
                  Charlotte, NC  28226
 
Phone: (866) 789-3863
Fax: (561) 961-5005
Email:
 

Commitment: $10,000,000.00
Effective Date: November  30, 2011
Term of Agreement: A period of 12 months, commencing on the Effective Date (“Initial Term”)
Guarantors: Name: Brad M. Bernstein, Validity

Address: 19650 Estuary Drive
                  Boca Raton, FL  33498
Phone: (561) 212-6537
Fax:
Email:
 
Name: Morry F. Rubin, Validity
Address: 17853 Key Vista Way
                  Boca Raton, FL  33496
Phone: (561) 477-7257
Fax:
Email:
 
Name: Anchor Funding Services, Inc.
Address: 10801 Johnston Road Suite 210
                  Charlotte, NC  28226
Phone:
Fax:
Email:
 
Name: Anchor Trade Finance, LLC
Address: 10801 Johnston Road Suite 210
                  Charlotte, NC  28226
Phone:
Fax:
Email:
 

Factor Advance Rate: 90%
Bank Advance Rate: 80%
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SCHEDULE  B TO REDISCOUNT CREDIT FACILITY AGREEMENT
AVAILABILITY CERTIFICATE

 
     
The Borrower certifies the following amounts:  
     
Client:  Client Name   
Current Date: 11/__/2011   
     
Accounts Receivable    
     
1 Total Line of Credit   $              0.00
2 Total Receivables-Beginning Balance  $              0.00
3 Collections   $              0.00
4 Other reductions to collateral base  $              0.00
5 New Receivables Purchased  $              0.00
6 Total Receivables End of Day Balance:  $              0.00
     
7 Deductions to Receivables (Ineligibles)  
     
 Over 90 Day Invoices $              0.00
 Cross Aging  $              0.00
 Over 25% of Total Debtor AR $              0.00
 Over Debtor Credit Limits $              0.00
 Total Deductions  $              0.00
     
8 Total Eligible Accounts Receivable  $              0.00
9 Total Net Eligible Accounts Receivable adjusted for credit limits  $              0.00
10 FACTOR Advance against Eligible Receivables  $              0.00
     
11 Eligible Advance   $              0.00
12 Current Amount Owing  $              0.00
13 Availability   $              0.00
14 Request for collections-lockbox  $              0.00
15 Apply collections to Loan Balance (Money Wired by Client)  $              0.00
16 New Loan Increase Request  $              0.00
17 Total Draw Request   $              0.00
18 Wire Fee    $            20.00
19 New Outstanding Loan Amount  $              0.00
 
Under the penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this Availability Certificate
and the referenced invoices, schedules, exhibits, and/or statements, are to the best of
my knowledge and belief contained therein are true, correct and complete, and the
invoices for which this advance is requested satisfy all of the warranties contained
in the Financing Agreements. I understand that TAB Bank   
will be relying upon this Certificate in advancing funds to FACTOR.   
        
        
This certificate has been executed on behalf of Client by:   
        
        

Signature  Date
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EXHIBIT 10.28
 

VALIDITY WARRANTY

October ____, 2011

Transportation Alliance Bank Inc. dba TAB Bank
4185 Harrison Blvd., Ste. 200
Ogden, Utah  84403

RE:           Anchor Funding Services, LLC (“Factor”)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In order to induce Transportation Alliance Bank Inc. dba TAB Bank (“TAB”) to purchase the accounts of Factor, the undersigned hereby warrants and represents to TAB
as follows:

1.           All of Factor’s accounts which have been or will be reported to TAB by or on behalf of Factor and in which TAB holds a security interest (“Accounts”), whether
such reports are in the form of Schedules of Accounts, collateral reports or financial statements, are and will remain genuine and in all respects what they purport to be;
and to the best of the undersigned’s knowledge and belief represent bona fide obligations of Factor’s Sellers’ (as defined in the Agreements) customers arising out of the
sale and delivery of merchandise sold by Sellers (the “Sold Goods”) or the rendition of services, or both, in the ordinary course of its business in accordance with and in
full and complete performance of customers’ (each, a “Customer”) orders therefor.

2.           All original checks, drafts, notes, letters of credit, acceptances and other proceeds of the Accounts, received by Factor, will be held in trust for TAB and will
within two (2) business days be forwarded to TAB upon receipt, in kind, in accordance with the terms of any agreements between TAB and the Factor (the
“Agreements”).

3.           To the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned, none of the Accounts will be subject to any offsets, recoupment, defenses or counterclaims of any
nature whatsoever, including but not limited to Sellers’ inability to fulfill future obligations or orders owed to any account debtors as a result of Sellers’ failure to remain
a going concern, inability to pay suppliers or obtain needed materials, or Sellers’ becoming insolvent; and all of the Accounts will be paid by the respective Customers;
and Factor will not in any way impede or interfere with the normal collection and payment of the Accounts.

4.           Factor is presently solvent.

5.           To the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned, the Sold Goods will be up to the point of sale, the sole property of Seller, and the Accounts and Sold
Goods will be free and clear of all liens and security interests, except Factor’s security interest. The due dates of the Accounts will be as reported to TAB.

6.           Factor will promptly report to TAB all disputes, rejections, returns and re-sales of Sold Goods and all credits allowed by the Factor against any Account.

7.           All reports, which TAB receives from the Factor, including but not limited to those concerning its Accounts, will be true and accurate in all material respects.

8.           Factor will not suffer any lien, security interest or other encumbrance on any of its present or future Accounts or inventory, without TAB’s prior written consent
in each instance.

The undersigned hereby indemnifies TAB and holds TAB harmless from any direct, indirect or consequential damages or loss which TAB may sustain as a result of the
breach of any representation or warranty contained herein (all of which are continuing and irrevocable) or of TAB’s reliance upon any material misstatement (whether or
not intentional),, fraud, deceit or criminal act on the part of any officer, employee, or agent of the Factor, or any costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses)
incurred by TAB in the enforcement of any rights granted to TAB hereunder.  All such sums will be paid by the undersigned to TAB on demand.
 
Nothing herein contained shall be in any way impaired or affected by any change in or amendment of any of the Agreements.  This agreement shall be binding upon the
undersigned, and the undersigned’s personal representative, successors and assigns; and shall remain in full force and effect until the later to occur of the termination of
the Agreement entered into between Bank and Factor, or the repayment in full of all Obligations owing thereunder and as defined therein.
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Any action brought by TAB against the undersigned which is based, directly or indirectly, on this Validity Warranty or any matter in or related to this agreement or the
Agreements, including but not limited to the obligations of the Factor or TAB, shall be brought only in the courts of the State of Utah, or in any court in which TAB may
have initiated an action against the undersigned or the Factor.  The undersigned agrees that any forum other than the State of Utah (or where TAB initiated action against
Factor or the undersigned) shall be an inconvenient forum and that suit so brought should be dismissed or transferred.  In the event of any such action brought by TAB to
enforce its rights hereunder, TAB shall be entitled to recover from the undersigned its attorney’s fees, court costs and expenses incurred.
 
 Sincerely,  
    
    
  Name: Brad M. Bernstein, President and CFO  
    
    

 
STATE OF   )  
   )     ss.  
COUNTY OF   )  
 

On this _____ day of _________________, 2011, before me, the undersigned notary, personally appeared Brad M. Bernstein, who being by me duly sworn did
state, that he is the President and CFO of Anchor Funding Services, LLC, the limited liability company that executed the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that
such limited liability company executed the same and that he was authorized to execute said instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
 
 
   
    
    
  Notary Public  
    
My Commission Expires:   Residing At:  
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Morry F. Rubin, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Anchor Funding Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

              b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance  with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.
 
    
DATE: November 14, 2011 By: /s/ MORRY F. RUBIN     
  Morry F. Rubin  
  Principal Executive Officer  
    



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Brad Bernstein, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Anchor Funding Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

              b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance  with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.
 
    
DATE: November 14, 2011 By: /s/ BRAD BERNSTEIN  
  Brad Bernstein  
  President and Principal Financial Officer  
    



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2011 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Morry Rubin, Principal Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. ss.1350, as adopted pursuant to ss.906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
    
 By: /s/ MORRY F. RUBIN  
  Morry F. Rubin  
  Principal Executive Officer  
  November 14, 2011  



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2011 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Brad Bernstein, President and Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.1350, as adopted pursuant to ss.906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
    
 By: /s/ BRAD BERNSTEIN  
  Brad Bernstein,  
  President and Principal Financial Officer  
  November 14, 2011  

 
 



EXHIBIT 99.4
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE – November 14, 2011

Anchor Funding Services, Inc. reports net income from continuing operations of $61,448 and $255,981 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011
and enters into a new credit facility decreasing its cost of funds.

Boca Raton, Fl. (PR Newswire) November 14, 2011– Anchor Funding Services, Inc. (OTC Bulletin Board Symbol “AFNG.OB”) announced today its results of
operations for the quarter ended September 30, 2011. The company reported third quarter 2011 finance revenues of $561,014, a decrease of $111,070 or 16.5% over the
comparable period of the prior year. The decrease in revenues was attributable to a loss of a significant customer which accounted for approximately $183,000 in
revenues for the quarter ended September 30, 2010.  The company reported nine month 2011 finance revenues of $1,880,154, an increase of $106,418 or 6.0% over the
comparable period of the prior year. Our increased finance revenues are attributable to the company’s investments in its sales initiatives and growth among certain
Anchor portfolio clients. This partially offset the loss of a significant customer which accounted for approximately $95,000 in revenues for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 as compared to approximately $275,000 for the comparable period of September 30, 2010. The company had income from continuing operations of
$61,448 for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 as compared to income from continuing operations of $51,572 for the comparable period of the prior year.  The
Company had income from continuing operations of $255,981 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to a loss from continuing operations of
$(67,087) for the comparable period of the prior year.

We are pleased to announce that on November 8, 2011, Anchor entered into a Rediscount Credit Facility with a Commercial Bank that is effective November 30, 2011
and replaces its existing credit facility. The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the facility is $10 million and the Bank will advance up to 80% of up to 90% of
Anchor’s advances to its clients. Anchor will pay interest on advances monthly at the 90 Day Libor Rate plus 6.25%.  Anchor will pay the Bank various other monthly
fees as defined in the agreement. The agreement requires that Anchor maintain at all times a ratio of debt to tangible net worth of four to one (4:1).  The agreement
contains customary representations and warranties, events of default and limitations, among other provisions. The agreement is collateralized by a first lien on all
Anchors’ assets. Had this facility been in place as of January 1, 2011, Management estimates that net income for the three months and nine months ending September 30,
2011 would have been approximately $94,500 and $370,000, respectively.
 
Morry F. Rubin, CEO, stated "We are excited about our profitable results from continuing operations and our new credit facility which will make us more competitive in
the marketplace with the ability to fund larger transactions. Since having completed our private placement of convertible preferred securities in April 2007, we have
organically grown the portfolio from less than a dozen clients in a few states to servicing more than 130 companies in more than 30 states so far in 2011. We are focused
on adding additional credit worthy clients to our national portfolio and  seeking acquisition opportunities while remaining vigilant in securing opportunities to reduce our
internal cost of funds."

We are excited about our future expansion opportunities and will continue to communicate important developments as they occur.

About Anchor

Anchor provides innovative accounts receivable funding, purchase order financing, inventory funding and credit management services to small and mid-size U.S.
businesses. Our funding program which is based upon creditworthiness of accounts receivable, provides rapid and flexible financing to support small businesses’ daily
working capital needs.

Additional Information
 
For additional information, a copy of Anchor’s Form 10-Q can be obtained on the Internet by going to www.sec.gov, clicking “Search for Company filings,” then
clicking “Companies & Other Filers,” typing in our company name and clicking “find Companies.”
 
Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
 
Certain statements in this press release constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the
company to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements express or implied by such forward-looking statements.  The forward-looking
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties including, without limitation, changes in levels of competition, possible loss of customers, and the company’s ability to
attract and retain key personnel.

Contact Morry F. Rubin, Chairman and C.E.O.  561-961-5000
Email: mrubin@anchorfundingservices.com


